AGREED UPON LANGUAGE between THE TOWN OF ENFIELD, CONNECTICUT and ENFIELD POLICE LOCAL #798, COUNCIL #15 AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES - AFL-CIO

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE4
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION 4
ARTICLE 2 - UNION SECURITY
ARTICLE 3 - DUES CHECK-OFF 4
ARTICLE 4 - HOURS OF WORK
ARTICLE 5 - RATES OF PAY7
ARTICLE 6 - OVERTIME
ARTICLE 7 - CALL TIME
ARTICLE 8 - TRAINING 10
ARTICLE 9 - HOLIDAYS AND VACATIONS 10
ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE
ARTICLE 11 - SICK LEAVE PROGRAM 15
ARTICLE 12 - INJURY LEAVE
ARTICLE 13 - MILITARY LEAVE
ARTICLE 14 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
ARTICLE 15 - SENIORITY 18
ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 17 - SUSPENSION AND DISCHARGE
ARTICLE 18 - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
ARTICLE 19 - PROMOTIONS
ARTICLE 20 - EXTRA WORK
ARTICLE 21 - GENERAL PROVISIONS
ARTICLE 22 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
ARTICLE 23 - PRIOR PRACTICES
ARTICLE 24 - POLICE PENSION PLAN
ARTICLE 25 - PERSONAL LEAVE
ARTICLE 26 - EFFECTIVE DATE
ARTICLE 27 - SAVING CLAUSE
ARTICLE 28 - DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE
ARTICLE 29 - RESIDENCY
ARTICLE 30 - PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS & PHYSICAL FITNESS
ARTICLE 31 - SERVICE RATING
ARTICLE 32 - FSA AND CHET PLANS

Page 2

ARTICLE 33 - JURY DUTY	
ARTICLE 34 - DEGREE INCENTIVE PROGRAM	
ARTICLE 35 - DRUG TESTING	
ARTICLE 36 - DURATION	
APPENDIX A	
APPENDIX B	42
APPENDIX C	
APPENDIX D	
APPENDIX E	
APPENDIX F	50

PREAMBLE

This Agreement, entered into by the TOWN OF ENFIELD, CONNECTICUT, hereinafter referred to as the EMPLOYER, and LOCAL #798, CONNECTICUT COUNCIL OF POLICE UNIONS #15, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the UNION, has, as its purpose, the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences, and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work, and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

SECTION 1. The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of bargaining for the establishment of salaries, wages, hours and other conditions of employment for all sworn police officers of the Enfield Police Department up to and including the rank of Lieutenant. Animal Control Officers employed by the Town of Enfield shall also be included.

SECTION 1A. The parties expressly acknowledge that the positions of Chief of Police, Deputy Chief and Captain(s) are excluded from the bargaining unit represented by the Union.

SECTION 2. The term "employee" or "employees" as used in this Agreement shall mean any and all sworn Police Officers of the Enfield Police Department up to and including Lieutenants, and unless expressly specified to the contrary, herein, shall also include Animal Control Officers.

SECTION 3. There shall be a probationary period from the commencement of employment until six (6) months after satisfactory completion of the Field Training Program for newly appointed employees provided that such probationary period not exceed eighteen (18) months, nor be less than twelve (12) months. This shall not preclude a probationary employee from moving to the next pay step following the probationary rate on his/her anniversary date. The probationary period for all promotions shall be six (6) months.

ARTICLE 2 - UNION SECURITY

SECTION 1. All present employees covered by this Agreement shall, as a condition of employment, become and remain members of the Union, in good stature thirty (30) days after the signing of the Agreement. All future employees shall be required to become and remain members of the Union six (6) months after their appointment to the Enfield Police Department. The Employer agrees to inform all applicants to the Enfield Police Department. The Union agrees to provide the necessary membership and dues deduction forms.

ARTICLE 3 - DUES CHECK-OFF

SECTION 1. The Employer agrees to deduct Union membership initiation fee and weekly dues from the pay of those employees who individually request in writing that such deduction shall be made. The amounts to be

deducted shall be certified to the Employer by the Treasurer of the Union, and the aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted to the Treasurer of the Union by the last Friday (pay day) of the current month, after such deductions are made.

ARTICLE 4 - HOURS OF WORK

SECTION 1. The work period shall consist of five (5) consecutive workdays between days off as defined in Section 3. Employees shall be compensated a minimum of forty (40) hours per week for their regularly scheduled work week, unless all or part of the work week is charged to an unpaid leave of absence.
SECTION 2. The normal scheduled shifts, inclusive of roll-call, rest period, meal period and debriefing reports prior to the end-of-duty hours, shall encompass the following schedule:

1st shift 0700-1500/0800-1600

2nd shift 1500-2300/1600-2400

3rd shift 2300-0700/2400-0800

The Employer may revise and establish additional shifts according to the needs of the Dept.

SECTION 2A. The normal schedule for part-time Animal Control Officers shall be mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Union. The Town may revise and establish additional hours according to the needs of the Department.

SECTION 3. The work schedule for all employees except those employees in Administrative Positions shall consist of a cycle of five days of work followed by two days off, followed by five days of work, followed by three days off, after which the cycle shall be continuously repeated with the result that employees shall continuously receive alternating days off of two days and three days after each five day work period. Provided, however, to fulfill the needs and requirements of the department, the Chief of Police may designate certain positions as "Administrative Positions." The days of work, shift hours and days off applicable to said, "Administrative Positions," shall be determined by the Chief of Police and shall be subject to bid. No employee in an "Administrative Position" shall be scheduled to work in excess of five days in a work week. Detectives in Administrative Positions who are regularly scheduled to work a shift on a weekend, may once per month, subject to the needs of the Department, swap a weekday off in the same work week for the normally scheduled shift on the weekend. No more than one Detective normally scheduled to work the scheduled weekend shift may swap in the same week.

SECTION 4. Employees shall have the right to bid by seniority available hours of work on regular shifts as posted. Patrol assignments shall also be bid by seniority. Such bid availability shall be posted at least four

(4) weeks prior to being effective.

- a. Spares shall be assigned on regularly scheduled shifts to particular beats or duties by their commanding officer on a daily basis.
- b. Employees who fail to bid their shift preferential, as available, prior to the effective date of any such bid, shall be assigned to a particular shift by the Chief of Police or his designee.

SECTION 5. The duration of the assignment, subject to bid, shall be a maximum of fifteen (15) weeks, and said duration shall be posted at the time the assignments are bid. The duration time may be extended by mutual agreement between the Town and the Union. If additional assignments are established prior to the duration posted at the time of bid, the bid shall be reopened on posting of the additional assignment. Bids will take effect the first Sunday at 0000 hours in each bid period. Two consecutive fifteen week bid periods will be bid simultaneously.

SECTION 6. The positions of Full Time Animal Control Officer shall be designated to be an "Administrative Position".

SECTION 7. Officers may return to their work stations fifteen (15) minutes before the termination hour of their shift, if work demands permit, for the purpose of preparing reports, notifying oncoming officers of any beat conditions, and to notify the supervisor of any unusual occurrences they may have encountered during their shift.

SECTION 8. An employee shall be required to work on his regularly scheduled day off only in the case of an emergency, which is defined as a situation that cannot be anticipated by at least four (4) hours.

a. It is understood that the normal conditions resulting from formal parades, vacations, and elections do not constitute emergency.

SECTION 9. SHIFT ASSIGNMENTS: Employees may exchange shift assignments ("swaps") with other employees by mutual agreement and advance notice of eight (8) hours to the Captain or his/her designee.

Swaps between 2 employees shall be permitted subject to compliance with all federal laws and shall not under any circumstances result in any additional cost to the Town of Enfield.

The employee requesting the swap will do so in writing and both employees will provide their signature to acknowledge their obligations regarding the same or on a recorded line to the Captain or his/her designee.

There will be a limit of two swaps per employee per month within the same bid period. Partial swaps are prohibited: employees must swap their shift assignments in full increments, unless authorized by the Chief or designee.

Page 6

2017_C_0816

ł

No swaps during the months of April, May or June, unless authorized by Chief or designee. Members may swap during this period, if benefit time was denied or member does not have any benefit time available.

ARTICLE 5 - RATES OF PAY

SECTION 1. Effective sixty (60) days after the award in case SBMA No. 2003-MBA-33 becomes final and binding the patrol classification will be reduced from eight (8) steps to seven (7) steps, dropping the probationary step, per Appendix A.

SECTION 1A. Effective July 1, 1990 all employees who maintain their status as Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT's) shall be paid a sum of two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00). Effective July 1, 1993, this sum shall increase to three hundred dollars (\$300.00). This money shall be paid in one lump sum the first pay period of December 1990 and each December of each fiscal year thereafter.

SECTION 2A- Effective June 30, 2014, all rates of pay on the pay plan with the exception of the Animal Control Officer (ACO) shall receive a \$3,000.00 increase as an adjustment in pay. The ACO shall receive a \$500.00 increase as an adjustment in pay. The new rate does not take effect until the 2% annual rate of pay increase on July 1, 2013 and 2% annual rate of pay increase on July 1, 2014 are factored into the new hourly rate.

SECTION 2B- Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2013, all rates of pay on the pay plan in effect after the salary adjustment in 2A, shall be increased by two percent (2.0%).

SECTION 2C- Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2014, all rates of pay on the pay plan in effect on June 30, 2014, shall be increased by two percent (2.0%).

SECTION 2D- Effective July 1, 2015, all rates of pay on the pay plan in effect on June 30, 2015, shall be increased by two percent (2.0%).

SECTION 2E- Effective July 1, 2016, all rates of pay on the pay plan in effect on June 30, 2016, shall be increased by two percent (2.0%).

SECTION 3. Salary step increases for newly hired or promoted employees shall be based upon anniversary date of employment or promotion.

SECTION 4. All regular employees requested to work in a classification higher than his own shall be paid the salary for the higher classification. The following procedure shall apply:

- a. The period of work shall be a minimum of eight (8) hours.
- b. Pay shall be at the rate of the beginning step of the higher classification, or the next step of the employee, whichever is the larger.
- c. Application of this Section shall be to the temporary rank of Detective, Sergeant, or Lieutenant, no rank above, on official replacement only.

SECTION 5. Effective January 1, 2007 all employees will be paid through direct deposit and will furnish the Finance Department with the necessary information to arrange for said deposit.

SECTION 6.Employees hired after July 1, 2009 who are certified police officers prior to their employment with the Town, will be given credit for each full year of full time police experience, up to seven (7) years, that they had before their employment with the Town. For each year of credit they will advance one step on the patrol officer pay plan in Appendix A. The maximum rate of pay a patrol officer may start at is Step 7 of the pay plan. This credit does not apply to seniority or any other benefit under the contract. For purposes of this section, any employee that meets the above requirements will be applied retroactively to July 1, 2013.

ARTICLE 6 - OVERTIME

SECTION 1.Effective upon the issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 2003-MBA-33, an employee required to work in excess of eight (8) hours per day, in excess of his/her scheduled eight (8) hour shift or in excess of his regularly scheduled work week, shall receive time and one-half (1 ½) for such overtime work. SECTION 1A. Part-time Animal Control Officers shall receive time and one-half (1 ½) of their regular rate of pay for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one week.

SECTION 2. All overtime assignments must be authorized in advance by the Chief of Police or his designee. **SECTION 3.** In all overtime assignments, regular full time members of the Department shall be given preference. All overtime, except for that specified in Section 5, shall be allocated by means of a computer tally list bearing the names of employees who have indicated their desire for overtime work. Said tally sheet shall be maintained by the Chief of Police or his designated agent and he shall keep an on-going count of overtime hours charged and overtime hours worked, provided that no employee shall be charged for overtime that is less than two (2) hours in duration. As overtime becomes available, it shall be offered on a rotation basis starting with the employee with the least number of hours charged. The computer tally list shall be started by seniority in each division and classification beginning with all overtime assignments scheduled for

July 1 or thereafter of that year. The number of hours charged on the tally list begins with zero (0) hours. Officers on benefit days shall be offered overtime but shall not be charged if declined. Officers on days off in conjunction with five or more benefit days shall be offered overtime but shall not be charged for same if declined. Employees on Military Leave or off-duty illness/injury shall not be charged. Employees that have accepted overtime and now wish to cancel said overtime must provide a minimum of two (2) hour notice. **SECTION 4.** New employees shall be eligible for overtime work upon completion of the Connecticut Municipal Training Academy except as provided in Section 5.

SECTION 5. All overtime shall normally be on a voluntary basis except:

- a. Where there is a declared emergency by the Town Manager or the Chief of Police.
- b. Where such overtime is contiguous with the initial and terminal hours of the employee's shift.
- c. Where the Town is unable to fill its overtime schedule, in which case the least senior employee who has completed the Connecticut Municipal Training Academy will be required to work overtime, provided that such overtime work will not result in the employee's working in excess of sixteen (16) consecutive hours.
- d. Probationary employees who have not yet completed their training at the Connecticut Municipal Training Academy may be required to work overtime for unforeseen and unanticipated incidents, such as but not limited to, a national disaster, civil disobedience or labor dispute when the Town is unable to fill overtime needs with officers who volunteer for said overtime.

ARTICLE 7 - CALL TIME

SECTION 1. Employees who may be required to return to duty to perform overtime duties on a regular working day, and when such hours are not contiguous with the initial or terminal hour of the regular shift hours, shall be paid not less than two (2) hours of pay at time and one-half (1 ½). For the purpose of this section, a regular working day shall be an entire twenty-four (24) hour period commencing at midnight during which the employee is scheduled for a regular tour of duty.

SECTION 1A. Effective upon issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343, employees required to appear in their official capacity in court or work related hearings due to Department related cases outside of their regularly scheduled work hours, shall be paid at time and one-half (1 ½) for this time per Article 6 or Article 7, whichever applies. Part-time Animal Control Officers shall be compensated for this time in accordance with Article 6.

SECTION 2. The full time Animal Control Officer reporting for call or duty after regularly scheduled hours

shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours regular compensation at time and one-half (1 1/2).

SECTION 3. Employees "on call" shall be paid \$200.00 for each calendar week on such status.

ARTICLE 8 - TRAINING

SECTION 1. All department scheduled training shall be considered as hours worked and any training in excess of forty (40) hours in a work week shall be compensated at time and one-half (1 ½). SECTION 2.An employee(s) shall have their hours and days of work scheduled or rescheduled as required according to the needs of the training assignment, provided that employees are notified of any changes of the hours of work or days off at least forty-eight (48) hours (exclusive of normally scheduled time off), in advance of such training assignment.

ARTICLE 9 - HOLIDAYS AND VACATIONS

SECTION 1. Paid holidays shall be allowed for all regular employees of the Enfield Police Department and will not have to be earned before using said holiday. These holidays shall include the following:

- a. New Year's Day
- b. Martin Luther King Day
- c. Lincoln's Birthday
- d. Washington's Birthday
- e. Good Friday
- f. Memorial Day
- g. Independence Day
- h. Labor Day
- i. Columbus Day
- j. Veterans' Day
- k. Thanksgiving Day
- 1. Christmas Day
- m. The birthday of all regular employees shall be included as an annual paid holiday commencing July I, 1971.
- n. In the event of an unforeseen National or State holiday and it is declared by the Town Manager as such and is, in fact, celebrated by the Town, each employee shall be entitled to the holiday in addition to the total holidays provided for in Section I.
- effective April 16, 1991, any employee who works on one of the following holidays shall be paid time and one-half (1 ¹/₂) his/her regular rate of pay for the hours worked on said holiday:

Page 10

Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Memorial Day. Effective upon the issuance of the binding arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343, any employee who works on one of the holidays listed as a. through l. in this section shall be paid time and one-half (1 ½) his/her regular rate of pay for the hours worked on said holiday. Any employee who works on a holiday shall be allowed to take the holiday at another time of his/her choosing. Effective upon issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343, whenever an employee is required to work on one of the holiday specified in Section 1, subsections a. through l., and such work was not part of the employee's scheduled hours of work, s/he shall be compensated at two (2) times his/her regular rate of pay (2x base hourly rate) for such hours worked.

SECTION 1A. Effective July 1, 1985, those employees who work the five-two, five-three schedule shall be permitted to take eleven (11) paid holidays in any fiscal year, forfeiting Lincoln's birthday and the Employee Birthday without any compensation in lieu thereof. If an employee on the 5-2, 5-3 schedule works on Lincoln's Birthday or his/her own birthday, s/he shall not receive the premium pay or additional day off provided under Sections 1.0, and 1.0 (1) above.

SECTION 1B. Effective July 1, 1984, the Union agrees to allow the Town to give other Town employees the day after Thanksgiving off without seeking compensation.

SECTION 2. In the event of the death of an employee, the spouse and/or designated beneficiary of the employee shall receive compensation for any earned but unused holidays.

SECTION 3. In the event an employee retires, he shall be compensated for any earned but unused holidays at the time of retirement as severance pay.

SECTION 4. Effective upon the date of vacation selection for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1985, members shall be allowed the following vacation periods during each fiscal year at basic straight time pay:

- a. At least 1 year but less than 5 years, 10 work days of vacation earned per fiscal year.
- b. At least 5 years but less than 12 years, 15 workdays of vacation earned per fiscal year.
- c. At least 12 years but less than 20 years, 20 workdays of vacation earned per fiscal year.
- d. 20 or more years, 25 workdays of vacation earned per fiscal year.

SECTION 4A. Vacation entitlement in any vacation year shall be determined by the years of service an employee has on his anniversary date.

SECTION 4B.Effective July 1, 1985 employees working in Administrative Positions shall be allowed the following vacation periods during each fiscal year at basic straight time pay:

- a. At least 1 year but less than 5 years, 15 work days of vacation earned per fiscal year.
- b. At least 5 years but less than 12 years, 20 workdays of vacation earned per fiscal year.
- c. At least 12 years but less than 20 years, 25 workdays of vacation earned per fiscal year.

d. At least 20 years, 30 workdays of vacation.

SECTION 5. In the event of the death of an employee, the spouse and/or designated beneficiary of the employee shall be compensated for any earned but unused vacation time the employee may have.

SECTION 6. In the event the employee retires, he shall be compensated for any earned but unused vacation time as severance pay. Compensation for this Section and Section 5 shall be at the employee's current rate of pay.

SECTION 7. In the event of illness during an employee's vacation period, the employee shall be given the option of charging the sick days to his sick leave, providing a doctor's certificate verifying illness and period of illness is presented.

SECTION 8. The bid calendar shall be made available in the first week of the month prior to the effective date of the bid period. Vacations, paid holidays and shifts shall be bid and slips submitted by seniority before the end of the one month bid periods. Vacation and Paid Holiday will be approved or denied not later than 30 days before requested time off.

a.

Separate vacation bid calendar shall be prepared for the following and employees shall be approved their vacation time as specified within 15 days of closing of the bid. Vacation shall be granted before paid holiday during bidding process.

Traffic 1 man	Patrolmen 6 men
Juvenile 1 man	Sergeants 1 man
Detectives 1 man	Lieutenants 1 man

Employees shall have the right to select their vacation dates in accordance with seniority, but shall not schedule vacation that shall create an overtime expenditure in providing such leave of absence. The Town shall employ its best efforts to accommodate the employee's vacation. Employees may have their scheduled vacation canceled due to an emergency situation and such emergency is so declared by the Town Manager. An exception shall prevail as to accommodate overlapping conditions not to exceed one (1) or two (2) days, one extra man from each unit shall be allowed off.

- b. Vacation shall be scheduled between the normal days off of the covered employees.
- c. In the cases of personal emergency, a man shall be allowed to change his vacation time from the original bid to a new time to cope with said emergency if such new time is available.
- d. In the event an employee wishes to change his bid vacation time and the alternate vacation time is open, the employee shall be allowed to change his bid vacation time. Changes must be made at least two (2) weeks in advance.
- e. Vacations and five (5) or more paid holidays shall be bid for each of the two consecutive 15 week bid

periods commencing in accordance with Article 4 section 5.

f. Vacations are not cumulative and must be taken prior to June 30th of each fiscal year unless otherwise approved by the Chief.

SECTION 9.Recruitment Benefit Day. Any current officer in his or her official or unofficial capacity that successfully recruits another to join the department and the recruit successfully completes the new hire probationary period will be entitled to one (1) benefit day. This benefit day is limited to one (1) benefit day per fiscal year regardless of how many officers he or she recruited for that fiscal year.

ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE

SECTION 1.Effective within sixty (60) days following the date this contract becomes final and binding, the town shall provide the following insurance programs for those employees and their eligible dependents that choose to enroll in such insurance programs.

The Town shall provide health insurance coverage for all bargaining unit members exclusively through a High Deductible/Health Savings Account plan ("HSA plan") as set forth in Appendix F (See attached). In addition, the following terms apply:

The Town will fund fifty percent (50%) of the applicable HSA deductible amount. For the 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 contract years, the full amount of the Town's contribution toward the deductible will be deposited in the HSA accounts on or before July 15th. Effective 2016-2017 contract year, one-half of the Town's contribution toward the deductible will be deposited into the HSA accounts on or before July 15th and the remaining one-half will be deposited in the HSA accounts on or before July 15th.

The parties acknowledge that the Town's HSA contributions are not an element of the underlying health insurance plan, but rather relate to the manner in which the deductible shall be funded for actively employed bargaining unit members.

Employees who retire before age 65 may elect to continue with their health insurance under the same terms of the contract at the time of their retirement. If a retiree elects to stay with the Town's health insurance, then the Town will continue to fund 50% of the retiree's HSA deductible amount as outlined in the health insurance plan. However, once the retiree reaches age 65, the Town shall have no obligation to make any HSA contribution.

Page 13

Nothing in this provision shall change the terms already afforded to retirees under Article 10, Section 4 of this contract.

SECTION 2. The employee premium contribution (pursuant to IRS Sec. 125) through payroll deduction for the benefits provided under Appendix F shall be:

Effective July 1, 2013, bargaining unit members shall be required to contribute fourteen (14%) of the cost of his or her insurance coverage through payroll deductions.

Effective July 1, 2014, bargaining unit members shall be required to contribute fourteen (14%) of the cost of his or her insurance coverage through payroll deductions.

Effective July 1, 2015, bargaining unit members shall be required to contribute fourteen (14%) of the cost of his or her insurance coverage through payroll deductions.

Effective July 1, 2016, bargaining unit members shall be required to contribute fifteen (15%) of the cost of his or her insurance coverage through payroll deductions.

SECTION 3. Effective upon the issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 2003-MBA-33, the Town agrees to provide and pay for a life insurance policy in the amount of \$50,000 for all employees covered by this Agreement. Any employee who retires on or after July 1, 1987 shall be provided with a life insurance policy paid by the Town in the amount of \$5,000 effective July 1, 1988.

SECTION 4. Effective July 1, 1974, retired employees shall receive Blue Cross 65 and Blue Shield 65, if eligible. Effective on the date of the arbitration award in Case No. 8990-MBA-120, the Town will contribute up to three thousand dollars (\$3,000) per year toward the premium costs for such health insurance coverage as may be provided by the Town to active employees in the bargaining unit, for employees retiring on or after such date and their spouses. No such contribution shall be made if other insurance coverage is available or becomes available to the employee through another employer or through his/her spouse's employer or through Medicaid/Medicare. Such contributions shall continue for life, so long as the employee demonstrates that no such other coverage is available to the employee.

SECTION 5. Accidental Death and Dismemberment (Off-Duty). This insurance, in addition to the life

Page 14

insurance plan, is payable if an employee suffers any of the losses listed below as a result of and within ninety (90) days from the date of an accident occurring while insured as provided by the insurance contract then in force. The Town shall pay the full premium for such coverage.

For loss of: Life	\$30,000
Both hands, both feet, or sight of both eyes	\$30,000
Any combination of foot, hand, or sight of one eye.	\$30,000
One hand, one foot, or sight of one eye	\$15,000

SECTION 6.Weekly Income Insurance. All employees shall be covered by the Town's Weekly Income Insurance in the event the employee becomes totally disabled as a result of non-occupational injury or sickness. Said employee shall receive a weekly disability of one hundred and fifty (\$150.00) dollars per week for a maximum of thirteen (13) weeks under the provisions of the insurance contract currently in effect.

SECTION 7. An employee who is covered under alternate health insurance through another employer (e.g. spouse) may elect in writing, on a form provided by the Town, to waive coverage under the Town's health and dental insurance programs. Such employee shall receive a minimum amount of \$500.00 or one-quarter of the premium share paid by the Town for the Blue Cross PPO plan whichever is greater on or about December 1 of each year, and prorated as necessary based on the number of calendar months out of the preceding 12 months during which the Town was not required to pay any premiums for health/dental coverage for the employee or his/her dependents. Re-entry into the Town's insurance program shall be permitted on the first day of January, April, July or October.

SECTION 8. The Town may from time to time change the carriers for any of the foregoing insurance provided that the benefits shall be equivalent or better that those provided in the above referenced coverages.

ARTICLE 11 - SICK LEAVE PROGRAM

SECTION 1. Employees hired prior to April 1, 1996 shall accrue sick leave without limit. Employees hired on or after April 1, 1996 shall accrue sick leave to a maximum of 120 days. Employees may be entitled to use sick leave with full pay as has accrued to their credit pursuant to the following provisions.

SECTION 1A. Employees shall not be entitled to sick leave with pay prior to the satisfactory completion of his/her probationary period.

SECTION 1B.Accrual of sick leave

a. A new employee shall receive no sick leave credits until satisfactory completion of the Connecticut Municipal Training Academy, however, such employee shall accrue sick leave

Page 15

at the annual rate of ten (10) days to be credited upon satisfactory completion of the Connecticut Municipal Training Academy.

- b. An employee with more than one year, but less than five years of continuous service, shall receive ten
 (10) sick leave days per year.
- c. An employee with five (5) or more years of continuous service shall receive twelve (12) sick leave days per year.
- d. An employee with ten (10) or more years of continuous service hired before the issuance of the award in SBMA case no. 2003-MBA-33 shall receive fifteen (15) sick leave days per year.
- e. Sick leave shall be accrued on a monthly basis commencing with the employee's anniversary date of employment.

SECTION 2. Sick leave shall be defined as time off the job because of:

- 1. Personal illness
- 2. Physical incapacity
- 3. Enforced quarantine
- 4. For illness or physical incapacity in the employee's immediate family requiring employee's personal attendance.

SECTION 3. Employees shall inform the Commanding Officer or Superior Officer on duty, whichever is appropriate, of their need to be absent at least one and one-half hours prior to their regularly scheduled starting time the first day and each day thereafter when return to work is doubtful as a result of illness, injury or disease.

SECTION 4. Before any sick leave compensation is paid, the Town may request, and is entitled to receive from an employee who has been absent more than three (3) days in succession, a certificate signed by a competent physician or other medical attendant, certifying to the fact that the absence was in fact due to sickness and not otherwise. The Town also reserves the right to have an examination made at any reasonable time of any person claiming absence by reason of sickness; such examination may be made when the Town deems the same reasonably necessary to verify the sickness claimed and may be made on behalf of the Town by any competent person designated by the Town. This shall not preclude the Town from taking other appropriate action in cases where there is abuse of sick leave.

SECTION 5. There shall be maintained by the Enfield Police Department a record of each employee of all sick leave taken and accumulated.

SECTION 6. A. An employee hired prior to April 1, 1996, upon retirement, shall receive on the basis of his current wages, full compensation for any unused accumulative sick leave as severance pay, in accordance with Section 1 of this Article, not to exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days. B. An employee hired on or

after April 1, 1996 shall receive on the basis of his current wages, full compensation for any unused accumulative sick leave as severance pay, in accordance with Section 1 of this article, not to exceed seventy five percent (75%) of his accrual, to a maximum of 75% of one hundred and twenty days (120) days. **SECTION 7.** In the event of an employee's death, his spouse and/or designated family member shall receive, on the basis of the employee's current wages, full compensation for any of the employee's sick leave accumulation, in accordance with Section 1 of this Article, not to exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days. **SECTION 8.** Employees on authorized sick leave shall be considered sick from the time of notification through the effected day. Employees shall not work overtime or extra work for eight (8) hours commencing from the completion of their scheduled shift on which they called in sick.

SECTION 9. Employees shall provide a physician's certificate to the Employer confirming nature and duration of illness or injury for any absence of three (3) days duration or longer upon request.

SECTION 10. Employees shall not be required to provide to the Employer a physician's certificate for the first five (5) one (1) day absences in any fiscal year; however, thereafter, a physician's certificate shall be required for any absence resulting from sickness or injury during such fiscal year upon request.

SECTION 11. Employees, may at their option, use vacation credits or holiday credits to extend sick leave. **SECTION 12.** In the event that an employee has used his entire sick leave accumulation as a result of a non-occupational, prolonged terminal illness requiring hospitalization, or because of a catastrophic illness or injury which has disabled him for more than thirty (30) calendar days, other employees may donate sick time to the employee and said sick time shall be deducted from the accumulation of the employee making the donation. The establishment of this sick leave bank is subject to approval by the Town Manager, and/or the Chief of Police. At some future time, the employee receiving this donated sick time, upon accumulation of sick time on his own shall compensate his donor by signing off said sick time to the donor, if donor so requests.

SECTION 13. The parties agree to add the attached Sick Leave Policy as Appendix D of this contract.

ARTICLE 12 - INJURY LEAVE

SECTION 1. Injury leave shall be defined as time off the job, as a result of a physical incapacity, caused by an accident, injury or occupational disease, arising out of and in the course of employment.SECTION 2. An employee who sustains a work-related accident and/or injury shall forthwith notify the

Commanding Officer on duty who shall implement Worker's Compensation Insurance Procedures for timely reporting to the Personnel Office.

SECTION 3. In the event that an employee covered by this Agreement is injured while at work, and as a

consequence of said injury, receives Workers' Compensation disability pay, said employee shall receive Workers' Compensation and supplemental pay so that the employee shall be compensated at the rate of pay to which the employee would be entitled pursuant to Article 5 (Rates of Pay) prior to such injury or disease for a period not to exceed a total accumulation of two years for heart and hypertension claims and one (1) year for all others. At the end of this period such supplemental benefits shall cease. Sick leave benefits will no longer accrue after 30 calendar days on worker's compensation (exclusive of heart and hypertension claims). The town shall assume the cost for the first three (3) days of the on-the-job injury or any recurrence thereof. The supplemental pay for part-time Animal Control Officers shall be based on the number of their regularly scheduled hours.

ARTICLE 13 - MILITARY LEAVE

SECTION 1. Military leave shall be granted, not to exceed thirty (30) days in any calendar year, to regular employees when required to serve on active duty with the military reserve or the National Guard. During this period, if the employee's daily basic military pay is less than his or her daily regular police pay, he or she shall be paid the difference by the Town. Prior to granting military leave, the Town of Enfield shall receive a written copy of the military leave requirements from the employee. Basic military pay rate will be construed as to include flight pay and incentive pay, but will not include meals and quarters allowances, or any other additional benefits relating to out-of-pocket expenses. Daily military pay shall be the pay defined above multiplied by the number of calendar days of military duty. Whenever an employee is granted a leave of absence for six (6) months or more, upon reinstatement to the Police service, he shall be entitled to and shall receive instructions and training to acquaint him or her fully with police procedures and methods followed by the department at the time of his or her reinstatement. Time on military leave shall be included in computing seniority earned in the police service.

ARTICLE 14 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

SECTION 1. Three (3) days special leave with pay shall be granted for death in the immediate family of an employee or the immediate family of his/her spouse. "Immediate family" for the purposes of this clause is defined as parents, grandparents, spouse, brother, sister, child or grandchild, step-relation, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, uncles, aunts, and also any relation domiciled in the employee's household.

ARTICLE 15 - SENIORITY

SECTION 1. Seniority, which officers accumulate, is of two (2) types:

a. Total length of continuous time served with the department shall be known as Department Seniority and

Page 18

any approved leave of absence or suspension.

b. Total length of time served within a job classification shall be known as Classification Seniority. SECTION 2. Department seniority shall commence from the date the police officer entered into the service of the Enfield Police Department as a regular, full-time member and thereafter maintains consecutive years of service. Consecutive years of service shall not be broken by vacation time, temporary layoff, sick time, or

When more than one (1) officer is appointed to the department on the same date, the departmental seniority of such appointees shall be determined by their relative positions on the eligibility list.

SECTION 3. Classification seniority shall commence from the date of the appointment of an employee into a job classification. Consecutive years of service shall not be broken by vacation time, temporary layoff, sick time, any approved leave of absence, or suspension. Classifications shall consist of patrol officers, detectives, sergeants, and lieutenants.

SECTION 4. Seniority shall apply within each division. Seniority lists shall be by classification appointment. The member with the least seniority in classification shall be considered and placed at the bottom of the respective seniority list.

SECTION 5. In the event of a reduction in the number of police officers employed by the Town, layoffs shall be made in the inverse order of the department seniority of police officers, irrespective of the division to which they are assigned. In the event of a reduction of the number of Animal Control Officers, part-time employees shall be laid off first in the inverse order of seniority based upon their date of hire.

SECTION 5A. In the event of a reduction of manpower within divisions or classifications, and this reduction is not made voluntarily by the employee, said reduction shall be by seniority with the least senior employee in said division or classification being eliminated first, and so on down the line. Further if said employee is returned to the patrol division, said employee shall have the option of trading his classification or division seniority in for equal amount of patrol seniority, thereby returning to his patrol slot held prior to entering said division or classification. Once division or classification seniority is traded in, it is lost and cannot be regained unless the employee starts at the bottom of the seniority list in said division or classification.

SECTION 6. The established seniority list of the Enfield Police Department shall be brought up-to-date July 1 of each year, and a copy of this list shall be delivered to the Union ten (10) days prior to the effective date of this contract and annexed to this contract. Any objection to this list shall be made during this ten (10) day period to the Executive Board of the Union.

SECTION 7. In the event of any personnel action by the Chief of Police where seniority appears not to have been given consideration, the officer involved shall have the right to seek correction by way of the provisions outlined in the Grievance Procedure of this contract.

SECTION 8.

- a. Transfers within divisions will be instituted by the Chief of Police or his designee according to the needs of the department. These transfers are not considered promotions and are on a voluntary basis. Consideration shall be given to the employee with the highest department seniority provided such employee is THE BEST qualified as demonstrated by his work record, ability to perform the job and specific need. JOB QUALIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE POSTED IN ADVANCE.
- b. Temporary transfers to maintain shift requirements within divisions shall continue to be filled by seniority. Senior men shall be given preference; in the event all senior men decline, the least senior man must comply. In the event the employer involuntarily changes an officer's shift resulting in an officer working 16 hours during a 17 consecutive hour period over two consecutive days, the hours worked over 8 hours will be paid at time and one-half.
- c. In determining temporary transfers to other divisions, candidates MUST MEET position classification requirements and requirements UNDER SECTION 8.a.
- d. Any temporary transfers shall be on a voluntary basis. Such temporary transfer or temporary special assignment shall not involve any promotion or permanent job reclassification.

SECTION 9. Employees shall lose their seniority as a result of the following:

- a. Voluntary termination
- b. Discharge for just cause
- c. Failure to return to work upon expiration of an approved leave of absence
- d. Layoff for two (2) years or more

ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

SECTION 1.Purpose. The purpose of this grievance procedure shall be to settle employee grievances on as low an administrative level as is possible and practicable so as to insure efficiency and employee morale. **SECTION 2.**Definition. A grievance, for the purpose of this procedure, shall be considered to be a complaint of an aggrieved employee or a Union complaint concerned with:

- a. Discharge, suspension or other disciplinary action
- b. Matters relating to the interpretation and application of the Articles and Sections of this Agreement
- c. Working conditions and safety standards
- SECTION 3. Procedure:
 - a. Any aggrieved employee may use this grievance procedure with or without Union assistance. Should an aggrieved employee process a grievance through one or more of the steps provided herein prior to

seeking Union aid, the Union may process the grievance in the next succeeding steps following that which the aggrieved employee utilized. No grievance settlement made as a result of an individually processed grievance shall contravene the provisions of this Agreement. STEP ONE:

A grievance shall be filed by any employee who feels aggrieved within seven (7) calendar days of the occurrence or event giving rise to the grievance or, if the grievance is filed by a representative of an employee, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the occurrence or event giving rise to the grievance. All grievances shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the first level supervisor who is not a member of the bargaining unit. Said first level supervisor shall exercise whatever authority may be delegated to him or her to resolve the grievance, and shall render a written decision to the employee and his representative within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the grievance.

STEP TWO:

If the aggrieved employee and his representative, if represented, are not satisfied with the decision rendered by said first level supervisor, the employee shall within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the answer at Step One, submit the grievance in writing to the Chief of Police or his designee who shall render a written decision to the employee and his representative, if represented, within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the grievance.

STEP THREE:

If the employee and his representative, if represented, are not satisfied with the decision rendered be the Chief of Police or his designee, the employee may submit the grievance to the Town Manager or his designee, in writing, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the answer at Step Two. The Town Manager, within twenty one (21) calendar days of receipt of the grievance, shall schedule a mutually agreeable date for the Step 3 hearing. Unless the parties mutually agree to extend the date for said hearing, said hearing shall occur within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the grievance. The Town Manager or his designee shall render a written decision to the employee and his representative, if represented, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the step three hearing.

STEP FOUR:

If the employee and his representative are not satisfied with the decision rendered, the grievance may be submitted at the request of the Union within twenty-one (21) calendar days to the Connecticut State Board of Mediation and Arbitration, and the decision rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and binding upon both parties.

All arbitration hearings before the Board shall be closed to the public, including the press, unless the Town or employee shall request that it be an open hearing. All witnesses at arbitration hearings shall be sworn and give testimony under oath. Mechanical recording equipment or a stenographer will be used to record all testimony if requested by either party; and a copy of the testimony shall be given to all parties concerned, providing the party requesting recording or stenographic services pays the cost of same.

SECTION 4. Time Extensions: Time extensions beyond those stipulated in this grievance procedure may be arrived at by mutual agreement of the parties concerned.

SECTION 5. Police Union as a Complainant: The Police Union shall be entitled to submit grievances in the name of the Police Union in the same manner as is provided herein for employees.

SECTION 6. Representation: Employees and the Police Union shall have the right and choice of representation whenever representation is desired by either the employee or the Police Union. The cost of such representation shall be borne by either the employee or the Union.

SECTION 7. The fee of the Arbitrator and the administrative expenses of the arbitration, if any, shall be shared equally by the parties.

SECTION 8. Two (2) Union Officials shall be afforded time off without loss of pay during working hours when actively participating in any Step 4 mediation/arbitration proceeding provided approval has been granted by the Chief of Police.

SECTION 9. The arbitrator(s)shall have no authority to add to, subtract from, or otherwise modify the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17 - SUSPENSION AND DISCHARGE

SECTION 1. No employee covered by the Agreement shall receive a written reprimand, be suspended, demoted or discharged except for just cause.

SECTION 2. Any employee who has received a written reprimand or who has been suspended, demoted or discharged shall have the right to be represented by the Union and its representatives.

SECTION 3. Any employee shall be entitled to have all charges against him/her presented in writing. **SECTION 3A.** When an employee is notified that he/she has become the subject of an internal affairs investigation, the Chief shall issue the employee a written statement of the allegations and the employee's rights and responsibilities relative to the investigation.

SECTION 4. The Union shall have the right to question the propriety of any such disciplinary action or discharge through the grievance procedure herein outlined, including arbitration.

SECTION 5. Each employee shall upon reasonable request to the Chief, have the right to review his own

personnel file at such time as will not interfere with the orderly operation of the department.

SECTION 6. Any employee who has been disciplined or discharged, and who is subsequently exonerated, shall be reinstated without prejudice or loss of seniority and compensated for any loss of wages covering the period of any suspension for which he had been exonerated.

SECTION 7. Probationary employees may be terminated any time during the probationary period and do not have recourse under the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 18 - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

SECTION 1. The annual uniform allowance provided by Section 1A hereof shall be \$750.00 effective July 1, 2014.

SECTION 1A. Each employee hired on or after the execution of this Agreement by both parties shall receive a complete new police uniform. Upon satisfactory completion of his probationary period, the employee shall receive a uniform allowance payment equal to the amount referred to in Section 1, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of months or fractions thereof, between the date he satisfactorily completed his probation, and the end of the fiscal year after such completion, and the denominator of which shall be twelve. Thereafter, said newly hired employees shall receive annually the amounts provided for herein.

SECTION 2. Police equipment and clothing shall be furnished by the Employer.

4 Long-sleeve Shirts
4 Short-sleeve Shirts
3 Pairs of Pants
1 Car Jacket
2 Ties
1 Belt
1 Winter Hat with Strap
1 Summer Hat with Strap
1 Pair Boots (pullover)
1 Raincoat
1 Blouse
1 Long-sleeve Shirt (white)
1 Tie Bar
3 Belt Keeps
1 Name Plate

1 Handcuff Case

1 3-Cell Flashlight

1 Set Handcuffs

1 Magazine Pouch

1 Holster

1 Badge (Breast)

1 Badge (Hat)

2 Collar Insignias

1 I.D. Card

Baton

1 Semi-automatic

Batteries when necessary

Ammunition as necessary

1 Sam Brown Belt

2 Turtle Neck shirts

Body armor-If body armor is issued by the Department and accepted by the employee it must be worn while on duty and working outside jobs. If the employee accepts the body armor, the Town will provide up to an additional \$750, exclusive of the clothing allowance, for replacement body armor in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendation.

SECTION 3. Upon resignation or dismissal from the Enfield Police Department, serviceable clothing and equipment purchased by the Department shall be returned to the Police Department.

SECTION 4. Effective upon the issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343, a portion of the uniform allowance may be used for the purposes of professional cleaning of such uniforms per fiscal year based on years of service on anniversary date as follows:

Less than 5 years' service up to \$100 from allowance

At least 5 years' service but less than 10 years' service up to \$150 from allowance

10 or more years' service up to \$200 from allowance.

ARTICLE 19 - PROMOTIONS

SECTION 1. All promotions up to and including the rank of Lieutenant shall be by examination. The examination shall consist of written and oral tests and a service rating component as provided by Article 31 of this Agreement. The service rating of the promotional examination shall be an average score of the last three (3) service ratings. The employee shall successfully pass each component of the examination in order to

proceed to the next component. The written and oral tests and the service rating shall be weighted equally in arriving at the final score for each employee. Seniority shall also be a factor. Employees shall take promotional examinations on a voluntary basis.

SECTION 2. An officer shall be eligible to take any promotional examination for Detective upon completion of three (3) years of service with the Enfield Police Department; an officer for rank of Sergeant, upon completion of five (5) years of service; a Sergeant for rank of Lieutenant upon completion of one (1) year of service as Sergeant; a Lieutenant for rank of Captain after one (1) year of service as Lieutenant. The three (3) year and five (5) year requirement for Detective and Sergeant will be reduced by one (1) year for any officer that has been a certified police officer with ten (10) or more years of service from another agency, provided these officers must possess five (5) years of experience in investigations or supervision, respectively, with their prior employer to be eligible for this waiver.

SECTION 3. All promotions up to and including the rank of Captain shall be made from the ranks of the Enfield Police Department.

SECTION 4. The written portions of the promotional examinations shall be conducted by a recognized testing authority in the law enforcement field and be related to the State of Connecticut law enforcement functions. The Town shall post the passing grade of the written examination prior to its being administered. The oral portions of promotional examinations shall be conducted by the Town through the Personnel Office, and all scoring examiners involved in such oral examinations shall be ranking officers, sergeants or above, from other Police Departments. In lieu of the oral examination, the Department may utilize an assessment center which will have the same value as the oral board in the promotional process.

SECTION 5.Officers promoted to Detectives shall receive an additional \$500 per year on the date of promotion and the balance of the next highest step in the Detective classification that will afford them an increase upon satisfactory completion of probationary period. Officers promoted to Sergeants shall receive Probationary Step upon promotion and proceed to Step 1 upon satisfactory completion of probationary period and then proceed yearly to the next step on the anniversary date of promotion. Sergeants promoted to Lieutenant shall receive Probationary Step upon promotion and proceed yearly to the next step on the anniversary date of step 1 upon satisfactory completion of probationary step upon promotion and proceed to Step 1 upon satisfactory completion of probationary step upon promotion and proceed to Step 1 upon satisfactory completion of probationary step upon promotion and proceed to Step 1 upon satisfactory completion of probationary period and then proceed yearly to the next step on the anniversary date of promotion.

SECTION 6. As used herein, the term "employee" shall not include animal control officers.

ARTICLE 20 - EXTRA WORK

SECTION 1. Any police officer may be assigned extra police work, of a police nature, by the Chief of

Police or his designated agent, subject to the provisions of the following sections.

SECTION 2. The designated agent shall be any police officer unless otherwise agreed upon mutually by the Chief of Police and the Union Executive Board.

SECTION 3. Acceptance of extra police work shall be upon a voluntary basis.

SECTION 4. There shall be established two (2) extra police work rosters:

The first roster shall list all police officers available to work any time.

The second roster shall list all police officers who do not wish to work.

SECTION 5.Police Officers shall be assigned on a Sunday through Saturday basis. The duty roster shall be posted by 5:00 PM the Saturday prior to the scheduled work week.

- a. In the event, after assignment, a Police Officer cannot work, the Employer or his agent shall make the necessary replacement in accordance with Section 4.
- b. Police Officers shall be charged for each assignment worked and for each refusal. However, in the case of late assignment and scheduling not posted, no Police Officer shall be charged unless all refusals are also charged. Officers on benefit days shall be offered extra work but shall not be charged if declined. Officers on days off in conjunction with five or more benefit days shall be offered overtime/extra work but shall not be charged for same if declined. Employees on military leave or off-duty illness/injury shall not be charged. All assignments that are received during the scheduled period after the duty roster has been posted shall be made from the unscheduled Police Officers of the first roster and then in accordance with Section 4 by the Shift Commander.
- c. When multiple opportunities arise for extra work, (i.e. overtime, grant overtime, and extra duty assignments) and an overlap in the time period occurs, the officer will only be charged for the first call or anything after 30 minutes of the conclusion of the first job.

SECTION 6. In the event there are six (6) or more officers assigned to the same job, scheduled for the same hours, one (1) of the officers shall be a superior whose duties shall include the supervision of the other officers assigned.

SECTION 7: EXTRA JOBS PAY CHART

EXTRA JOBS FOR:	PAYRATE	POSITION
Town of Enfield	time & one-half (1 ½) top step rate (minimum of 4 hours payment for each assignment)	Patrol Officer (See Appendix A)
All Other Vendors* *Excludes Town of Enfield	time & one-half (1 ½) top step rate (minimum of 4 hours payment for each assignment)	Sergeant (See Appendix A)
All Other Vendors* <i>performed on Holidays as</i> <i>described in Article 9 –</i> <i>Section 1. (a-l and n).</i> *Excludes Town of Enfield	<u>double time (2x) top step rate</u> (<u>minimum of 4 hours payment</u> for each assignment)	Sergeant (See Appendix A)
All Private Construction and Utility Companies performed on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays described in Article 9-Section 1. (a-l and n).	double time (2x) top step rate (minimum of 4 hours payment for each assignment)	Sergeant (See Appendix A)

SECTION 7A. Effective upon issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343, in the event an extra job is canceled with less than two (2) hours' notification to the Department and the assigned employee, the employee scheduled for such extra job shall receive four (4) hours pay at the prescribed rate for the job. Jobs scheduled and billed directly to the Town and/or Enfield Board of Education shall be exempt from the provisions of this section.

SECTION 8. The Town of Enfield shall provide worker's compensation insurance for all officers employed on extra police work.

SECTION 9. Payment shall be made to the Director of Finance of the Town of Enfield, who, in turn, shall make payment to the employee after deduction of the appropriate deductions.

ARTICLE 21 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. Two (2) Union officials shall be allowed the required time without loss of pay to attend official Union conventions and State or National Conferences, not to exceed seven (7) days for one official and twelve (12) days for the other official. The Chief of Police shall be given notice five (5) days in advance of convention or conference.

SECTION 2. The Employer agrees that, upon the request of an employee covered by this Agreement, it will undertake the defense of that employee against any civil damage suit where the employee has acted within the scope of his employment.

1SECTION 3. Three (3) members of the Union negotiating committee, with no alternates, shall be granted leave from duty, with full pay, for all meetings between the Town and the Union for the purpose of negotiating terms of the contract when such meetings take place at a time during which such members are scheduled to be on duty.

2SECTION 4. Mileage Allowance. When private vehicles are used for official police business, there shall be a mileage allowance of twenty (20) cents per mile paid.

ARTICLE 22 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

SECTION 1.Except, where such rights, powers, and authority are specifically relinquished, abridged, or limited by the provisions of this agreement, and subject to the provisions of Connecticut General Statutes, sections 7-469 and 7-470, the employer has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or not, all the rights, powers, and authority heretofore had by it and except where such rights, power, and authority are specifically relinquished, abridged, or limited by the provisions of this agreement, it shall have the sole unquestioned right, responsibility and prerogative of management of the affairs of the Town and the direction of the working forces, included but not limited to the following:

Page 28

- a. To determine the care, maintenance and operation of the equipment and property used for and in behalf of the purposes of the Town.
- b. To establish and continue policies, practices, and procedures for the conduct of Town business and, from time to time, to change or abolish such policies, practices and procedures.
- c. To discontinue processes and operations.
- d. To select and to determine the number and types of employees required to perform the Town's operations.
- e. To employ, assign, assist, transfer, promote, or demote employees, or to lay off, terminate, or otherwise relieve employees from duty for lack of work or other legitimate reasons when it shall be in the best interest of the Town or department.
- f. To prescribe and enforce reasonable rules and regulations for the maintenance of discipline and for the performance of work in accordance with the requirements of the Town, provided such rules and regulations are made known in a reasonable manner to the employees affected by them.
- g. To ensure the incidental duties connected with departmental operations, whether enumerated in job descriptions or not, shall be performed by employees.
- h. To create job specifications, subject to the Union's right to challenge the accuracy of new or revised job specifications or of the propriety of the assigned rate.

ARTICLE 23 - PRIOR PRACTICES

SECTION 1.Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as abridging any written right, benefit, or privilege that employees have enjoyed heretofore unless it is specifically stated that said practice has been superseded by a provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 24 - POLICE PENSION PLAN

SECTION 1. The Police Pension Agreement, between the Town of Enfield and Prudential Financial, on file in the office of the Town Manager, is made a part of this Agreement with the following amendments:

- a. The Plan shall be amended so as to provide retirement at age fifty (50) with twenty (20) years of service. Effective July 1, 2006 the plan shall be amended to provide for a retirement at age fifty (50) with twenty (20) years of service or any combination of age and years of service which equal 70 years (Rule of 70). An employee must have a minimum of twenty (20) years of service to retire under the Rule of 70. An employee who retires under the Rule of 70 before age 50 will not be eligible for any retiree health insurance benefits or payments under Article 10.4 of this contract until they reach age 50.
- b. Effective December 31, 1976, the Pension Plan shall be amended to include a provision that each

eligible employee shall have vested rights, deferred to a normal retirement age, after ten (10) years of service.

- c. Effective July 1, 1995, the Normal Retirement Income for employees who retire on and after that date shall be equal to the sum of:
 - i. 52.5% of the participant's final earnings
 - ii. 2% of the participant's final earnings for each year of service accrued by the participant in excess of 20 years of service.
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum benefit for any participant shall be eighty-five percent (85%) of the participant's final earnings.
- d. Disability shall be defined as stated in Section 7.1 of the Plan as amended effective February 25, 1975.
- e. Effective July 1, 1991, service-connected disability benefits will continue at 52.5% until normal retirement date, at which time the participant's retirement benefit shall consist of an amount equal to the disability benefit he or she was receiving prior thereto, or in an amount equal to his or her normal retirement benefit, whichever is greater.
- f. Effective July 1, 1987 the Pension Plan shall be amended to include a pre-retirement death benefit which provided for a death benefit to the Participant's spouse equal to 75% of the employee's accrued monthly pension at the time of death. Should the participant die before Normal Retirement Date. In the event of an employee's death after Normal Retirement Date, but before actual retirement the 75% benefit will be increased to 100%. The spouse benefit will begin at the time the Participant would have been eligible had death not occurred.
- g. Effective July 1, 1987 the Pension Plan shall be amended to increase the joint and survivor and years certain election by 50% of their difference to 100%. Tables contained in Plan Document.

SECTION 2. The Town and the Pension Carrier agree that they shall not change any benefits in the Police Pension Plan through the duration of the Agreement.

SECTION 3. Annually, in January of each year, the Town shall furnish each employee with a statement, in writing, setting forth the amount that the employee has contributed toward the Pension Plan, together with any interest thereon.

SECTION 4. The Union shall designate two (2) members to meet semi-annually with the Director of Finance and the Director of Human Resources to review information relative to retirement and pension benefits.

SECTION 5. Employees who retire after the issuance of the arbitration award in SBMA Case No. 2003-MBA-33, who worked for the Town until age 55 or later, will receive a two percent (2%) cost of living allowance (COLA) added to their pension benefit commencing once they reach age 62, and a two percent (2%) COLA annually thereafter. For calculation purposes, retired employees will receive their COLA on the first of the month immediately following their birthday. For example, if a retired employee's 60th birthday is on July 1st, he will be receive his COLA effective August 1st and annually on that date thereafter.

SECTION 5A.Employees who retire on or after September 1, 2006, who worked for the Town until age 55 or later and have 20 or more years of service but less than 25 years of service, will receive a two percent (2%) cost of living allowance (COLA) added to their pension benefit commencing once they reach age 60, and a two percent (2%) COLA annually thereafter. Employees who retire on or after September 1, 2006, who worked for the Town until age 55 or later and have 25 or more years of service, will receive a two and one-half percent (2 ½%) COLA added to their pension benefit commencing once they reach age 60, and a two and one-half percent (2 ½%) COLA added to their pension benefit commencing once they reach age 60, and a two and one-half percent (2 ½%) COLA annually thereafter. For calculation purposes, retired employees will receive their COLA on the first of the month immediately following their birthday. For example, if a retired employee's 60th birthday is on July 1st, he will be receive his COLA effective August 1st and annually on that date thereafter.

SECTION 5B. Employees who retire on or after September 1, 2014, who worked for the Town until age 55 or later and have 30 or more years of service, will receive a three percent (3%) COLA added to their pension benefit commencing once they reach age 60 and a three percent (3%) COLA annually thereafter. For calculation purposes, retired employees will receive their COLA on the first of the month immediately following their birthday. For example, if a retired employee's 60th birthday is on July 1st, he will be receive his COLA effective August 1st and annually on that date thereafter. Consistent with Section 8 of this Article, individuals who DROP are eligible for this benefit.

SECTION 6. For pension benefit computation purposes only, for any employee covered under the Police Pension Plan who retires after June 30, 1992 and on or before June 30, 1993, the final salary used to compute his/her retirement benefit shall be the rate of pay such employee who have received on July 1, 1993 had he/she not retired. This provision is effective only if the rates of pay defined in Article 5 Section 1 remain frozen for fiscal year 1992-1993.

SECTION 7.Effective as soon as practical following the issuance of the arbitration award for Case No. 9192-MBA-343 and to the extent allowable by law, employee contributions toward the Police Pension Plan will be treated as Section 414(h) pre-tax contributions.

SECTION 8. DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION PLAN (DROP)

A. The Deferred Retirement Option Plan will be offered only to bargaining unit employees ("employees") employed on or after July 1, 2011. The DROP is intended to provide an alternative retirement option to employees who are eligible to retire. The Town and Local #798 agree that the DROP is considered to be cost-neutral as confirmed by the Town's actuary.

B. An employee, who is a member of the Retirement Plan for full-time employees of the Police Department of the Town of Enfield, is eligible for the DROP Plan upon completing:

The employee must provide the Town with at least 60 days advanced notice, in writing, that he/she has elected the DROP. No employees may elect the DROP after completion of more than (35.25) years of Credited Service.

Employees must the eligibility requirements to retire as defined in Article 24, Section 1 (a) of the contract.

C. Any employee electing DROP will be considered retired with respect to the Pension Plan but will not have separated from Town service. Notwithstanding any other provision within the pension plan to the contrary, a member does not need to leave Town service to qualify for pension benefits as long as that member has elected DROP. The employees who have elected the DROP may remain in Town service at their current rank, with all the benefits of their Collective Bargaining Agreement, including promotional opportunities, through and including the completion of their DROP period.

D. The DROP period is defined as the time after the employees have elected the DROP commencing on the date of the first payment to the DROP through the date that the member separates from Town service.

E. No further pension benefits will accrue after the DROP effective date.

F. When employees elect the DROP they will be entitled to all the benefits they would have received under the normal retirement provisions of the pension plan (during the DROP period) with the following exceptions:

(a) During the DROP period the employee's monthly pension payments will be made to the employee's separately designated DROP account established for the benefit of that member. During the DROP period, the monthly pension payments will depend on the DROP factor listed below. The DROP factor is multiplied by the monthly pension to determine the benefit during the DROP period:

Age:	45-55	91%
	56	89.4%
	57	87.8%
	58	86.2%
	59	84.6%
	60	83.0%
	61	81.4%
	62	79.8%
	63	78.2%
	64	76.6%
	65	75.0%

Age will be calculated in years and completed months as of the DROP date. For non integer ages, interpolation will be used to calculate the DROP factor.

An example is follows:

Date of Retirement: January 1, 2012 Date of Birth: February 12, 1956 Participant is Age 55, 10 months, 19 days. Therefore the Town will round to age 55 and 10 months. (10/12 X 89.4% + 2/12*91% = 89.7%)

Upon separation from Town service, the monthly pension payment shall increase to 100% of the monthly pension as of the DROP date, as though the member had retired and not elected the DROP.

(b) During the DROP period, the employees will continue to make the same employee contributions from earnings while employed with the Town as was in effect at the time the DROP was elected by such employee. These contributions are made to the pension fund, not the member's separate DROP plan account.

(c) Commencement of the COLA waiting period is based on the date the employee physically separates from Town service, not the DROP date. Service during the DROP period will count towards COLA eligibility.

G. Any member who has elected and commenced the DROP may not withdraw unless the member separates from Town service.

H. The minimum length of DROP will be one (1) year and the maximum length of the DROP will be five (5) years. Upon electing the DROP the employees will select the length of his/her respective DROP. Under no circumstances will an employee be credited with more than 36.25 years of service.

I. Any member who has elected the DROP may separate from Town service at any time during the DROP period and such separation will mark the termination of the DROP period and the commencement of normal pension benefits at 100%. The length of the DROP period will be the lesser of a or b:

- a) 36.25 years less service at the DROP date
- b) 5 years of service

(For example, an employee with 32.25 years of service can only DROP for 4 years, an employee with 33.25 years of service can only DROP for 3 years, an employee with 34.25 years of service can only DROP for 2.25 years, so on and so forth.

No members will be allowed to continue working for the Town of Enfield (in their capacity as a police officer) after the completion of their respective DROP period.

J. The Town will select an Administrator through the Ordinance Bidding process to custody the funds for all members who elect the DROP. The choice between investment vehicles offered by the administrator shall be with the bargaining unit member. The cost of such custody administration will be paid for by members as an account charge. Upon completion of the DROP period, the member will be considered a retired employee and will receive non-adjusted payments (100% of their Normal Retirement benefits as accrued on the DROP effective date plus a lump sum equal to the DROP accumulation). The lump sum will be made available to the employee/member within a reasonable period of time after the member terminates service with the Town.

K. If a member wants to DROP but is not eligible pursuant to the rules in this DROP plan, the member may obtain an individual quote under the following conditions:

- 1. The member pays the entire cost of obtaining a quote; and,
- 2. The impact of implementing the DROP plan for the member is "cost neutral" to the Town of Enfield; and,
- 3. The DROP plan is implemented using the same assumptions as described in the DROP plan.

PARTIAL LUMP SUMP (PLUS) OPTION

In lieu of receiving a pension in the form of an annuity, employees retiring on or after July 1, 2011, may elect a Partial Lump Sum Option whereby a portion of his/her pension benefit will be paid as a lump sum benefit upon retirement from the Town. The amount of the lump shall be equal to 10% of the actuarial present value of the benefit as determined by the Town's actuary. In addition, the new retiree will receive 90% of his/her retirement benefit as an annuity. Upon the death of the retired employee, the monthly benefits that the retired employee was receiving shall be continued for an eligible dependent, if any, as described in the Town of Enfield Police Pension Plan. The guidelines for determining the Actuarial Present Value are below.

Actuarial Present Value

- The assumptions are based on the July 1, 2010 Police Actuarial Valuation
- Interest Rate 8%
- Mortality Table RP 2000 Unisex Mortality
- In order to produce the same actuarial present value factors for both male and female officers, unisex mortality was used. The blend was based upon census demographics provided by the Town. The blend assumption is 89% male, 11% female.
- Cost of Living Adjustment Based upon the police officer's eligibility
- Current Table A table of factors as of July 1, 2011 is below:

			2 1/2%
		2% COLA	COLA
Member's		Begins at	Begins at
Age N	lo COLA	60	60
50	11.3712	12,1578	12.3896
51	11.2620	12.1133	12.3642
52	11.1473	12,0689	12,3405
53	11.0255	12.0234	12,3175
54	10.8964	11.9772	12.2958
55	10,7597	11.9306	12.2757
56	10.6161	11.8851	12.2591
57	10.4666	11.8427	12.2483
58	10.3096	11.8026	12.2426
59	10,1453	11,7660	12.2437
60	9.9739	11.7344	12.2532
61	9.7956	11,4799	11.9742
62	9.6111	11.2194	11.6894
63	9.4208	10.9535	11.3996
64	9.2254	10.6833	11.1058
65	9.0241	10.4080	10.8073

Interpolation will be used to determine the exact factor to be used. The factors will be based upon years and completed months. The Town will round all factors to four decimal places. An example is below:

- Date of Retirement: January 1, 2012
- Date of Birth: June 17, 1957
- COLA Eligibility: None

For this example, the participant is age 54, 6 months, and 14 days. Therefore, the Town will use age 54 and six months for the calculation.

- Age 54 factor from Table = 10.8964
- Age 55 factor from Table = 10.7597
- Age 54 and 6 months = .5 x 10.8964 + .5 x 10.7597 = 10.8281

ARTICLE 25 - PERSONAL LEAVE

SECTION 1. The Town shall provide three (3) personal leave days in each fiscal year to each regularly employed and sworn officer of the department so long as each officer retains at least ten (10) unused sick leave days credited to him for use in case of actual prolonged illness.

ARTICLE 26 - EFFECTIVE DATE

SECTION 1. This Agreement shall be effective upon July 1, 2013.

ARTICLE 27 - SAVING CLAUSE

SECTION 1. Should any Article, Section or portion thereof of this Agreement be held unlawful and

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision of the court shall apply only to the specific Article, Section or portion thereof, directly specified in the decision. Upon the issuance of such a decision, the parties agree to immediately negotiate a substitute for the invalidated Article, Section or portion thereof.

ARTICLE 28 - DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

SECTION 1. The Employer and the Union agree not to discriminate against individuals because of race, age, color, marital status, sexual orientation, creed, sex, religion, national origin, disability or union affiliation. As used in this Agreement, masculine or feminine pronouns shall include reference to either sex.

ARTICLE 29 - RESIDENCY

SECTION 1. Employees hired prior to July 1, 1980 shall not be subject to any restriction or requirement concerning residency as a term and condition of employment by virtue of any provision in this Agreement, including this Article, or by virtue of any charter provision or special act.

SECTION 2. Employees hired after July 1, 1980 shall, within twelve (12) months next following the date of their employment, reside in the Town of Enfield or within a radius of twenty-five (25) miles outside of the boundaries of the Town of Enfield in any direction.

ARTICLE 30 - PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS & PHYSICAL FITNESS

SECTION 1. Physical examinations will be required every three (3) years for all employees, commencing from the date of their last Town physical. These physical examinations are necessary to ensure that the employee meets the physical requirements of the job description. The examination will be conducted by a physician selected by the Town except that an employee may elect to have the examination conducted by a licensed physician of his/her choice, provided said examination is conducted within the same calendar year, that the physician's note, as described in paragraph 30.2 below, of said examination are provided to the Town within one (1) month of the examination, and that the same tests that are administered by the Town physician are administered by the employee's physician. In the event that the same tests are not administered by the employee's physician the employee must have a physical performed by the physician selected by the Town. The cost of an examination by the Town's physician shall be paid through the Town's insurance provided, however, that no employee shall have his benefits under the Town's insurance diminished as a result of the cost of said examination. In the event, and/or to the extent that the Town's insurance coverage does not extend to the cost of such examination, the Town shall pay the cost thereof. The cost of an examination by a physician selected by the employee shall be the responsibility of the employee, if not covered by insurance, and shall not be borne by the Town. If any physical problems are evident at the time of the employee's physical, then yearly physical will be required until the problem is eliminated or controlled. Physical

examinations will only be conducted if the Town implements the language in Article 30.2.

SECTION 2. The results of the physicals shall be sent to each officer upon completion of the physical. In addition, the officer will forward to the Police Chief or his/her designee a physician's note which states that the officer is "Physically Fit to Participate" in the physical fitness program defined in Article 30, Section 3 of the contract. Failure to obtain a "Physically Fit to Participate" note may warrant the officer to undergo a "Fitness for Duty" examine at the Town's expense.

SECTION 3. PHYSICAL FITNESS PROGRAM

The purpose of the physical fitness program is to ensure the ability of the officer to come to the aid of citizens and fellow officers who are in need of assistance while minimizing the potential risk of injury to the officer.

a. All employees hired <u>prior</u> to August 6th, 2012 shall participate in a physical fitness program that is individually designed by a trainer or counselor ("Trainer"). The Trainer shall be selected by mutual good faith agreement by the parties. Although employees shall train on their own time, counseling shall be done within work hours. The Town shall make available a physical fitness facility for all members. While good faith participation in the physical fitness program is mandatory, no discipline shall be imposed on any member for failing to meet the physical standards or expectations of the counselors. As part of the physical fitness program, weight lifting shall not be mandatory.

Prior to any physical fitness program being implemented, all officers shall have a physical examination (as specified in Article 30, Sec. 1) to determine if they are physically able to participate in the program. The physical fitness program is intended to help each individual officer regarding their physical fitness and is not intended to be punitive in any manner whatsoever.

- b. All employees *hired* after August 6th, 2012 shall participate in the following fitness program.
- c. All sworn personnel <u>hired</u> after August 6th, 2012 will be tested annually (pursuant to CT P.O.S.T. Standards) with a testing procedure that is reasonable but no more stringent than POST 50% (graduation level) standard.
- d. Employees <u>hired</u> after August 6th, 2012, <u>who fail their annual test</u>, will be followed up with counseling and retesting at 3 month intervals. If at the end of 1 year, the employee is not able to pass the test, they will be placed on a 1 year probationary period. Counseling and retesting at 3-month intervals will continue during the ensuing second 12- month period. At the end

2017_C_0847

of this second year, if the employee is not able to pass the test, the employee will be subject to the following progressive discipline after failing each 3-month interval test:

- 1. Verbal Warning
- 2. Written Warning
- 3. One day suspension without pay
- 4. Up to 5 day suspension without pay
- 5. Up to 10 day suspension without pay
- 6. Up to and including termination
- e. Reasonable adjustments will be made, as determined by a qualified person, for employees with injury or ongoing medical conditions that make it difficult for them to take or pass a portion of the test, while still allowing them to fully perform the job. For example, an injured shoulder that makes it difficult to do pushups should result in a waiver of that particular testing component until the employee is restored to health. Similarly, an ongoing lower back problem that allows full functioning on the job but makes it difficult to make the sit-ups standard, shall result in an agreed upon substitute standard or testing regimen to accommodate this medical condition. Consultation may take place among the Trainer and employee to work out reasonable compliance standards.

ARTICLE 31 - SERVICE RATING

SECTION 1. The Police Department shall perform a service rating of each bargaining unit member once a year. The service rating shall be performed by the employee's immediate supervisor(s), and the Department shall endeavor to have more than one supervisor participate in the evaluation of each officer, where ever practical. Evaluations will be reviewed, amended, corrected, modified and/or approved by a supervisor of a higher rank than the supervisor(s) who performed the initial evaluation. An officer may appeal an evaluation to the next higher level in the chain of command above the evaluating supervisor(s), and can continue to appeal that decision up to two levels above the evaluating supervisor(s). Individual officers who receive a score to sixty (60) shall have the right to grieve that rating under Article 16. A score of sixty (60) percent or under shall comprise an unsatisfactory rating.

SECTION 1A. The evaluation document currently in effect will continue to be used unless the parties agree on another form.

SECTION 1B. Officers shall be given a copy of each service rating.

2017_C_0848

ARTICLE 32 - FSA AND CHET PLANS

SECTION 1. The Town's flexible spending account and section 125 plan will be made available to the employees per the Agreement between the Town and the carrier. The monthly participant cost and annual fees, if any, for this plan will be borne by the employees opting to enroll in the account and plan. Enrollment is optional to all employees covered by this agreement.

SECTION 2. The Town will provide for payroll deduction of contributions to the Connecticut Higher Education Trust Fund for all employees who are residents of Connecticut.

ARTICLE 33 - JURY DUTY

SECTION 1.Employees shall receive jury duty leave consistent with the personnel rules in effect for the Town.

ARTICLE 34 - DEGREE INCENTIVE PROGRAM

SECTION 1.Effective 7-1-99 full time officers who have degrees in higher education from an accredited institution will be compensated annually as follows:

Associates Degree-\$500.00 Bachelor's Degree-\$750.00 Masters/Law Degree-\$1,000.00

SECTION 2. Degrees in criminal justice, law, business administration, public administration, psychology or sociology will automatically qualify for this program. Other related fields may qualify as determined by Human Resources after a review of the employee's college transcripts.

SECTION 3.To receive this compensation, employees must notify the Chief of Police in writing in December, of their expected eligibility for this payment in the following July.

ARTICLE 35 - DRUG TESTING

SECTION 1. The parties agree to add the attached Drug Testing Program as Appendix E of this contract.

ARTICLE 36 - DURATION

SECTION 1. This Agreement shall remain in force and effect through June 30, 2017.

FOR THE TOWN OF ENFIELD:

filende

FOR AFSCME COUNCIL 15, LOCAL 798:

DATE: September 19, 2014

		white concerns were not to				and the Association Provides to	ASTON 2013 STRUGG 414	2000/00/00/00/21	
Police Department Classifications	Increase	Fiscal Year	1 Year	2 Year	3 Year	4 Year	5 Year	6 Year	7 Year
PATROL	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 26.81	\$ 27.56	\$ 28.33	\$ 28.88	\$ 29.67	\$ 30.27	\$ 32.97
	\$3,000	6/30/2014*	\$ 28.25	\$ 29.01	\$ 29.77	\$ 30.32	\$ 31.11	\$ 31.72	\$ 34.41
	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 28.82	\$ 29.59	\$ 30.37	\$ 30.93	\$ 31.73	\$ 32.35	\$ 35.10
	2.00%	7/1/2015	\$ 29.39	\$ 30.18	\$ 30.97	\$ 31.55	\$ 32.37	\$ 33.00	\$ 35.80
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 29.98	\$ 30.78	\$ 31.59	\$ 32.18	\$ 33.01	\$ 33.66	\$ 36.52
DETECTIVE	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 29.71	\$ 30.15	\$ 30.74	\$ 31.36	\$ 32.21	\$ 34.32	N/A
	\$3,000	6/30/2014*	\$ 31.15	\$ 31.59	\$ 32.18	\$ 32.80	\$ 33.65	\$ 35.76	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 31.78	\$ 32.22	\$ 32.83	\$ 33.45	\$ 34.32	\$ 36.48	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2015	\$ 32.41	\$ 32.86	\$ 33.48	\$ 34.12	\$ 35.01	\$ 37.21	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 33.06	\$ 33.52	\$ 34.15	\$ 34.81	\$ 35.71	\$ 37.95	N/A
SERGEANT	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 32.90	\$ 33.41	\$ 33.98	\$ 34.47	\$ 36.74	N/A	N/A
	\$3,000	6/30/2014*	\$ 34.34	\$ 34.85	\$ 35.42	\$ 35.91	\$ 38.18	N/A	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 35.03	\$ 35.55	\$ 36.13	\$ 36.63	\$ 38.95	N/A	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2015	\$ 35.73	\$ 36.26	\$ 36.85	\$ 37.36	\$ 39.73	N/A	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 36.44	\$ 36.98	\$ 37.59	\$ 38.11	\$ 40.52	N/A	N/A
LIEUTENANT	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 36.63	\$ 37.34	\$ 37.95	\$ 38.31	\$ 40.97	N/A	N/A
	\$3,000	6/30/2014*	\$ 38.07	\$ 38.78	\$ 39.40	\$ 39.76	\$ 42.41	N/A	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 38.83	\$ 39.55	\$ 40.18	\$ 40.55	\$ 43.26	N/A	N/A
	2,00%	7/1/2015	\$ 39.61	\$ 40.35	\$ 40.99	\$ 41.36	\$ 44.13	N/A	N/A
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 40.40	\$ 41.15	\$ 41.81	\$ 42.19	\$ 45.01	N/A	N/A

APPENDIX A

Page 41

Police Department Classifications	Increase	Fiscal Year	1 Year	2 Year	3 Year	4 Year	5 Year	6 Year	7 Year	8 Year	9 Year
Animal Control	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 24.12	\$ 24.79	\$ 25.47	\$ 26.18	\$ 26.86	\$ 27.64	\$ 28.39	\$ 29.18	\$ 31.40
Officer	\$500	6/30/2014*	\$24.36	\$25.03	\$25.71	\$26.42	\$27.10	\$27.88	\$28.63	\$29.42	\$31.64
	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 24.85	\$ 25.53	\$ 26.23	\$ 26.95	\$ 27.65	\$ 28.44	\$ 29.21	\$ 30.01	\$ 32.27
	2.00%	7/1/2015	\$ 25.35	\$ 26.04	\$ 26.75	\$ 27.49	\$ 28.20	\$ 29.01	\$ 29.79	\$ 30.61	\$ 32.92
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 25.85	\$ 26.56	\$ 27.29	\$ 28.04	\$ 28.76	\$ 29.59	\$ 30.39	\$ 31.22	\$ 33.58
*\$500 lump sum incr	ease is fac	tored on 6/3	0/2014, b	ut new rat	e does not	take effe	ct until fac	tored with	COLA on	7/1/2014.	
Animal Control	2.00%	7/1/2013	\$ 14.86	\$ 16.24							
Officer (Part-Time)	2.00%	7/1/2014	\$ 15.16	\$ <u>16.57</u>							
	2.00%	7/1/2015	\$ 15.46	\$ 16.90							
	2.00%	7/1/2016	\$ 15.77	\$ 17.24							

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

ADDENDUM PERTAINING TO PART TIME ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICERS

Except as otherwise provided below, the provisions of the collective bargaining agreement between the Town of Enfield and Local #798, Connecticut Council of Police Unions #15, AFSCME, AFL-CIO to which this Addendum is attached, shall not apply to the position of Part Time Animal Control Officer

ARTICLE 1.....RECOGNITION ARTICLE 2.....UNION SECURITY ARTICLE 3......DUES CHECK OFF ARTICLE 4......HOURS OF WORK ARTICLE 6.....OVERTIME ARTICLE 7......CALL TIME ARTICLE 12.....INJURY LEAVE ARTICLE 15.....SENIORITY ARTICLE 16......GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ARTICLE 17......SUSPENSION & DISCHARGE ARTICLE 21......GENERAL PROVISIONS ARTICLE 22......MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ARTICLE 23 PRIOR PRACTICE ARTICLE 28......DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE ARTICLE 29.....RESIDENCY ARTICLE 31 SERVICE RATING

In addition to the above provisions, the Part Time Animal Control Officer shall serve a twelve (12) month probationary period upon initial appointment.

APPENDIX C

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

It is understood and agreed between the parties that when a patrol officer is promoted to sergeant or when a sergeant is promoted to lieutenant, that employee will be paid at the step in the higher classification that is the next greater step in value than the previous step the employee was on in the lower classification. An employee who has been promoted will not be paid at a rate of pay in the higher classification that is less than the rate of pay that the employee was paid in the lower classification.

2017_C_0854

APPENDIX D SICK LEAVE POLICY

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to employees and supervisors as to the employer's expectations of employees as to what is acceptable with respect to the utilization of sick leave.

Sick leave is not to be used to extend vacations or to be treated as a personal day or day off. Regular doctor's office visits for physical examinations, dental appointments, eye exams, etc. are not proper uses of sick leave, unless specifically agreed to by contract. Regular doctor's office visits for physical examinations and dental appointments may be properly charged to personal leave or vacation leave. Medical examinations for treatment of an ongoing illness or condition may be charged to sick leave.

The Town bears a great expense when an employee is absent from work. In some instances, the Town not only loses the employee's contribution for that day, but also incurs the cost of replacing that employee on an overtime basis. It is expected that employees will need to use sick leave at some point during their careers with the Town, but it must be stressed that their attendance is critical to the proper functioning of government and the delivery of services to the residents of Enfield.

In order to ensure the proper delivery of services and to curtail the excessive use of sick leave the Town adopts the following policy.

- 1. The Town reserves the right to investigate any use of sick leave for which a supervisor determines that there might be an abuse of sick leave. An abuse of sick leave is the use of sick leave for any purpose other than that which is allowed above or by contract. An abuse of sick leave will result in disciplinary action regardless of whether or not the employee has received a notice of sick leave usage, as described below.
- 2. In addition to reserving the right to investigate specific utilizations of sick leave for abuse the Town re-affirms its neutral policy of any absences beyond eight (8) occurrences of sick leave in a year is considered excessive and will be addressed as follows.
- Each employee's attendance will be reviewed in January of each year for the previous calendar year. If an a. employee has had more than eight occasions of sick leave in the previous calendar year, the employee's department head will be so notified by the Human Resources Department. An occasion can be part of one day (more than four hours), one day or the use of sick leave for multiple days as long as they are consecutive and not interrupted by a return to work or use of another form of leave or leave without pay. In the event that an employee uses less than four hours of sick leave during a work day it will be counted as one-half of an occasion as long as it is not used in conjunction with sick leave on the preceding or following day. The department head or his/her designee will meet with the employee and discuss the excessive amount of sick leave. In the absence of extraordinary circumstances, the department head will issue the employee a notice of sick leave usage which will state that the employee's use of sick leave will be monitored for the next six (6) months. In the event that the employee has more than three (3) occurrences during the six (6) month period of time that the employee is being monitored the employee will be subject to disciplinary action, which shall include as a minimum a one (1) day suspension without pay. Prior to the issuance of a suspension letter the department head or his/her designee will meet with the employee to again discuss the excessive absences. If the employee's attendance fails to improve over the next six (6) month period using the above standard, additional disciplinary action, up to and including, the termination of employment may be imposed. Again, this notice will be issued to the department head for issuance to the employee.

2017_C_0855

b. Extraordinary circumstances for which a department head or his/her designee may determine that a sick leave usage or disciplinary action notice will not issue include: *the need for an employee to attend repeat therapy sessions for the same injury,

*a re-occurring serious illness,

*a need for ongoing medical treatment for an illness,

* or other reasons which in the department head's judgment, justify excusing the employee from their regular duties during work hours for treatment.

APPENDIX E

TOWN SUBMITTED DRAFT 7-28-06

SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTING POLICY

1. The purposes of this policy are as follows:

- A. To establish and maintain a safe, healthy working environment for all sworn employees and to protect the public;
- B. To insure the reputation of the Town of Enfield Police Department and its police officers as good, responsible citizens worthy of the public trust;
- C. To reduce the incidents of accidental injury to person or property;
- D. To reduce absenteeism, tardiness and indifferent job performance; and
- E. To provide assistance toward rehabilitation for any employee who seeks help in overcoming any addiction to, dependence upon, or problem with alcohol or drugs.

2. Definitions

- A. Alcohol or alcoholic beverage-means the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight alcohol, including methyl and isopropyl alcohol.
- B. Drug means any substance (other than alcohol) capable of altering the mood, perception, pain level or judgment of the individual consuming it.
- C. Prescribed drug-means any substance prescribed for the individual consuming it by a licensed medical practitioner.
- D. Illegal drug means any drug or controlled substance, the sale, possession or consumption of which is illegal.
- E. Supervisor-means any officer with the rank of Sergeant or above who is the employee's immediate supervisor or a supervisor in the employee's chain of command, or the Chief of Police or his designee.
- F. Abuse of a legally prescribed drug- means use of a prescribed drug to the employee when a valid prescription is not in effect or the use of the drug in greater quantity/amount than that which was prescribed.
- 3. Basis for testing
 - A. Random drug testing-the Chief of Police shall determine the number of employees to be tested on an annual basis. Not more than 25% of employees shall be randomly selected per test. An independent testing agency shall select employees to be tested by a computer generated process not more than four times per year.
 - B. Reasonable suspicion testing an employee may be required to undergo testing based on "reasonable suspicion". Reasonable suspicion shall mean when objective facts and observations are brought to the attention of a supervisor, based on the reliability and weight of such information, such that the supervisor can reasonably infer that, or suspect that, the employee is using illegal drugs, is abusing prescribed drugs, or is reporting for duty (or on duty) under the influence of alcohol or drugs. Reasonable suspicion must be supported by specific facts which may include, but are not limited to: the appearance, speech, behavior, body odors, of the employee; reports and observations of the employee's drug related activities, such as purchase, sale or possession of illegal drugs; knowingly associating with known illegal drug dealers or users (exception for immediate family members); observation of the employee at known illegal drug or suspected illegal drug related locations; an otherwise unexplained change in the employee's behavior or work performance; an observed impairment of the employee's ability to perform his or her duties.

If the employee is ordered to undergo a reasonable suspicion drug and/or alcohol test he shall be given a brief verbal statement of the basis for the reasonable suspicion. A verbal directive to submit to such test shall be confirmed in writing, but the testing shall not be delayed pending the issuance of the written directive.

4. Testing procedures - Testing shall be performed by a licensed laboratory. Testing will be done with due regard for chain of custody and for the employee's right to privacy, subject to standard testing protocols to insure a valid sample. An employee shall have the right and shall not be denied the right to Union representation provided that it does not unreasonably delay the testing during any part of these testing procedures.

Testing for alcohol shall be by breathalyzer and/or intoxilyzer. If positive, there shall be a re-confirming test after fifteen minutes. The Town reserves the right to only test for alcohol by urine testing instead of breathalyzer and /or intoxilyzer. Testing for drugs shall be by urine testing.

For urine testing, the sample will be split into two parts. An employee whose drug test results in a positive report may, within forty eight hours of receiving notification of such result, submit in writing to the Chief of Police that the second part of the sample be made available for re-testing at a licensed laboratory of the employee's choosing. The second part of that sample shall be transferred to that laboratory in such a manner as to insure the proper chain of custody. The second test performed at the employees' request, shall be at the employee's expense. If the second test is negative, the positive test shall be null and void and the Town shall reimburse the employee for the cost of the second test and any loss of pay due to suspension.

5. Interference with or refusal to submit to testing - any alteration, switching, substituting or tampering with a sample or test given under this policy by any employee shall be grounds for immediate suspension and subsequent disciplinary action which may include discharge. The refusal by an employee to submit to a drug or alcohol screening test pursuant to the provisions of this policy, or to cooperate in providing information to the testing agency needed in connection with the testing, shall result in the employee's immediate suspension without pay and subsequent disciplinary action which may include discharge.

6. Rehabilitation - the opportunity for rehabilitation (exempting an employee from the disciplinary action found in section 7 below) shall be granted once for any employee who:

- A. voluntarily admits to alcohol or drug abuse prior to testing, or
- B. tests positive for alcohol or abuse of legally prescribed drugs for the first time.

The employee shall use accumulated sick or vacation leave for the period of any absence for the purpose of rehabilitation. All treatment will be at the sole expense of the employee, to the extent that it is not covered by the employee's health insurance. As part of any rehabilitation program, the employee may be required to undergo periodic screening for drugs and/or alcohol for a period of 36 months (up to 48 months if recommended by the Substance Abuse Professional) after his return to duty. The frequency of this testing will be at the discretion of the Chief of Police. This testing is in addition to random testing which the employee will continue to be subject to. If after screening, the employee tests positive, he will immediately be suspended without pay and will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including, the termination of employment.

Nothing in this policy shall preclude disciplinary action against an employee who is under criminal investigation for drug/alcohol related misconduct.

7. Consequences of a positive test - the consequence of a positive test shall be as follows: A. For use of an illegal drug - discharge.

2017_C_0858

- B. For use of a drug prescribed to someone other than the employee-30 day suspension, up to termination.
- C. For abuse of a legally prescribed drug to the employee first offense, 1-15 day suspension. Subsequent offense, 60 day suspension, up to discharge.
- D. For alcohol (at the level of .04 or greater) first offense, 1-15 day suspension. Subsequent offense, 60 day suspension, up to discharge.

8. The drug testing thresholds are attached and are subject to change if recommended by the vendor.

APPENDIX F

Health Savings Account Dental Plan & Pharmacy Plan Summary

Your coverage includes a health savings account that you can use to pa	you can use to pay for eligible out-of-pocket expenses.	
Employer Contribution	Employee - \$750 Employee + 1 - \$1,500 Family - \$1,500	
Plan Highlights	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Lifetime Maximum	Unlimited	Unlimited
Coinsurance	Plan pays 100% coinsurance	Plan pays 80% coinsurance
Maximum Reimbursable Charge Out-of-Network services are subject to a Contract Year deductible and maximum reimbursable charge limitations. Payments made to health care professionals not participating in Cigna's network are determined based on the lesser of: the health care professional's normal charge for a similar service or supply, or a percentage (200%) of a fee schedule developed by Cigna that is based on a methodology similar to one used by Medicare to determine the allowable fee for the same or similar service in a geographic area. In some cases, the Medicare based fee schedule is not used, and the maximum reimbursable charge for covered services is determined based on the lesser of: the health care professional's normal charge for a similar service or supply, or the amount charged for that service by 80% of the health care professional may bill the customer the difference between the health care professional way bill the customer the Maximum Reimbursable Charge as determined by the benefit plan, in addition to applicable deductibles, co-payments and coinsurance.	Not Applicable	200%

ACLU of Connecticut

©Cigna 2014

1 of 17

Plan Highlights	In-Network	Out-of-Network
 Contract Year Deductible The amount you pay for all covered expenses counts toward both voir in-network and out-of-metwork deductibles 		
pay each eligible family member's covered expenses based on the coinsurance level specified by the plan.	Individual: \$1,500 Family: \$3,000	Individual: \$1,500 Family: \$3,000
This plan includes a combined Medical/Pharmacy plan deductible.		
combined Medical/Pharmacy deductible.		
 Mail order pharmacy costs contribute to the deductible 		
Contract Year Out-of-Pocket Maximum		
 The amount you pay for all covered expenses counts toward both 		
your in-network and out-of-network out-of-pocket maximums.		
 Plan deductible contributes towards your out-of-pocket maximum. 		
 Mental Health and Substance Abuse covered expenses contribute 		
towards your out-of-pocket maximum.		
 All eligible family members contribute towards the family out-of- 		
pocket maximum. Once the family out-of-pocket maximum has	Individual: \$1,500	Individual: \$3,000
been met, the plan will pay each eligible family member's covered	Family: \$3,000	Family: \$6,000
expenses at 100%.		
 This plan includes a combined Medical/Pharmacy out-of-pocket 		
maximum.		
 Retail and home delivery Pharmacy costs contribute to the 		
combined Medical/Pharmacy out-of-pocket maximum.		
 Mail order pharmacy costs contribute to the out-of-pocket 		
maximum		
Pre-Existing Condition Limitation (PCL)	Not Applicable	Not Applicable

©Cigna 2014

2017_C_0862

Plan Highlichts	In=Network	Out-of-Network
Pre-certification - Continued Stay Review - PHS Inpatient - required for all inpatient admissions	Coordinated by your physician	Customer is responsible for contacting Cigna Healthcare. Subject to penalty/reduction or denial for non- compliance. • \$500 penalty applied to hospital inpatient charges for failure to contact Cigna Healthcare to precertify admission. • Benefits are denied for any admission reviewed by Cigna Healthcare and not certified. • Benefits are denied for any additional days not certified by Cigna Healthcare.
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Physician Services		
Primary Care Physician (PCP) Office Visit	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Specialty Care Physician Office Visit	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Surgery Performed in Physician's Office	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Allergy Treatment/Injections Unlimited maximum per plan year 	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Allergy Serum Dispensed by the physician in the office	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Benefit Preventive Care	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Routine Preventive Care - All Ages		
 Includes well-baby, well-child, well-woman and adult preventive 		
 Includes coverage of additional services, such as urinalysis, EKG, and other laboratory tests, supplementing the standard Preventive Care benefit. 	Plan pays 100%, no plan deductible	rian pays ou % comsulance alter plan deductible is met
Immunizations - All Ages Includes travel immunizations 	Plan pays 100%, no plan deductible	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met

©Cigna 2014

3 of 17

Benefit Preventive Care	In-Network	Out-of-Network
 Mammogram, PAP, PSA Tests Coverage includes the associated Preventive Outpatient Professional Services. Diagnostic-related services are covered at the same level of benefits as other x-ray and lab services, based on place of service. 	Plan pays 100%, no plan deductible	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Counseling - Nutritional and Genetic 3 days each per plan year Services associated with preventive care are covered at the Preventive Care benefit level Services for Diabetes are unlimited and do not contribute to the Day maximum	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Inpatient		
Inpatient Hospital Facility Semi-Private Room: In-Network: Limited to the semi-private negotiated rate / Out-of-Network: Limited to semi-private rate Private Room: In-Network: Limited to the semi-private negotiated rate / Out-of-Network: Limited to semi-private rate Special Care Units (Intensive Care Unit (ICU), Critical Care Unit (CCU)): In-Network: Limited to the negotiated rate / Out-of-Network: Limited to ICU/CCU daily room rate	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Inpatient Hospital Physician's Visit/Consultation	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
 Inpatient Professional Services For services performed by Surgeons, Radiologists, Pathologists and Anesthesiologists 	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Multiple Surgical Reduction	Multiple surgeries performed during one operating session result in payment reduction of 50% to the surgery of lesser charge. The most expensive procedure is paid as any other surgery.	erating session result in payment reduction most expensive procedure is paid as any
Benefit Outpatient	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Outpatient Facility Services	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
7/1/2014		

4 of 17

©Cigna 2014

Benefit Outmotiont	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Outpatient Professional Services	Dlan nave 100% coinsurance after nlan	Dlan nave 80% coincirrance affar nlan
 For services performed by Surgeons, Radiologists, Pathologists and Anesthesiologists 	deductible is met	deductible is met
 Short-Term Rehabilitation Per Contract Year Maximums: Pulmonary Rehabilitation, Cognitive Therapy, Physical Therapy, Speech Therapy, Occupational Therapy and Chiropractic Care – 		
 Unlimited days Cardiac Rehabilitation - 36 days 	Pran pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	rian pays ou% coinsurance arter plan deductible is met
Note: Therapy days, provided as part of an approved Home Health Care plan, accumulate to the applicable outpatient short term rehab therapy maximum.		
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Other Health Care Facilities/Services		
Home Health Care	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan
 Unlimited days maximum per Contract Year 	deductible is met	deductible is met
Skilled Nursing Facility, Rehabilitation Hospital, Sub-Acute Facility	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Dritable Medical Farinment	Plan nave 100% coinsurance after plan	Plan navs 80% coinsurance after plan
 Unlimited maximum per Contract Year 	deductible is met	deductible is met
Breast Feeding Equipment and Supplies I imited to the rental of one breast pump per birth as ordered or		Plan pavs 80% coinsurance after plan
 prescribed by a physician. Includes related subplies 	Plan pays 100%	deductible is met
100	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan
 Unlimited maximum per Contract Year 	deductible is met	deductible is met
Neuropsychological Testing	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan
Limited to coverage to assess developmental delays due to chemotherapy or radiation treatment for a child with cancer	deductible is met	deductible is met
Nutritional Formula	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Wigs (covered if medically necessary)	Dian nave 100% coincircance after nian	Dlan nave 100% coinsurance affer plan
Up to \$350 per covered person per plan vear	deductible is met	deductible is met
7/1/2014		

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan *-* 147330

©Cigna 2014

5 of 17

		Benefit			ų	In-Network		0 0	Out-of-Network	rk
Other Hea	alth Care F	Other Health Care Facilities/Services	ervices							
Hearing Aids Limited to dep	Hearing Aids Limited to dependent childrer	1 age 12 years a	Hearing Aids Limited to dependent children age 12 years and under with a maximum of	a maximum of	Plan pays 100% deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan	Plan pays 80% co deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	íter plan
41,000 per a	INO-Jeal pellon				Dian nave 100	Plan nave 100% coinsurance after plan	ofter nlan	Plan nave 80	Dian nave 80% coinci irance affer nian	fter nlan
Infusion Therapy	rapy				deductible is met	/et	מוכו הומו	deductible is met	net	
Electroshock Therapy	k Therapy				Plan pays 100% deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan	Plan pays 80% co deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ifter plan
Kidney Dialysis	sis				Plan pays 100% deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan	Plan pays 80% co dedcutible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan dedcutible is met	ıfter plan
Radiation Th	erapy and Che	Radiation Therapy and Chemotherapy Administration	Iministration		Plan pays 100% (deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan	Plan pays 80% co deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ifter plan
Early Interve Birth to age 3	Early Intervention Services Birth to age 3				Plan pays 100% deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan	Plan pays 80% co deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ifter plan
Hearing Exam One exam ever	Hearing Exam One exam every two plan years	ars			Plan pays 100% deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	efter plan	Plan pays 80% co deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan
Routine Foot Disorders	t Disorders				Not covered, except associated with foot peripheral vascular o medically necessary	Not covered, except for services associated with foot care for diabetes and peripheral vascular disease when medically necessary.	ces diabetes and vhen	Not covered, except associated with foot peripheral vascular o medically necessary	Not covered, except for services associated with foot care for diabetes and peripheral vascular disease when medically necessary.	ces diabetes and /hen
Vision care (covered under	Vision care (covered under Cigna Vision Care)	Care)		Plan pays 100%	%		Plan pays 100%	%0	
One exam ev	One exam every two plan years		Place of Service	- You pay l	e - You pay based on where you receive services.	here you	receive se	rvices.		
i	Physicia	Physician's Office	Outpatie	Outpatient Facility	Emergency Room/ Urgent Care Facility	bom/ Urgent cility	Indepen	Independent Lab	Inpatient Hospital	Hospital
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
Lab and X- ray	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Covered under plan's Inpatient Hospital benefit	Covered under plan's Inpatient Hospital benefit

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

©Cigna 2014

6 of 17

		Place c	Place of Service	- You pay	: - You pay based on where you receive services.	nere you l	eceive se	irvices.		
	Physicia	Physician's Office	Outpatie	Outpatient Facility	Emergency Room/ Urgent Care Facility	om/ Urgent cility	Indepen	Independent Lab	Inpatier	Inpatient Hospital
nener	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	k In-Network	Out-of- Network
Advanced Radiology Imaging (MRI, MRA, CAT Scan, PET Scan, etc.)	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance Not after plan deductible is met App	ė,	Not Applicable	Not Applicable	Covered under plan's Inpatient Hospital benefit	Covered under plan's Inpatient Hospital benefit
		Place of	of Service	- You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive services.	here you	receive se	ervices.		
Benefit		Physician's Office	ą	Emergency Room	y Room	Outpati (Radiologi F	Outpatient Professional Services (Radiologist, Pathologist, ER Physician)	nal st, ER	*Ambulance	ance
	In-Network		Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	k Out-of- Network	-of- vork	In-Network	Out-of- Network
Emergency Care	Plan pays	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	oinsurance after met	Plan pays 100% coins plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	and a set of the set of	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	insurance after ıet
* Ambulance s	ervices used a	as non-emergen	cy transportat	ion (e.g., transpo	* Ambulance services used as non-emergency transportation (e.g., transportation from hospital back home) generally are not covered	ital back home) generally are	e not cover	pe	
		Place (of Service	e - You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive services	here you	receive se	ervices.		
	ā	Physician's Office	ą	Urgent Care Facility	e Facility	Outpati	Outpatient Professional Services	nal	*Ambulance	ance
Benefit	In-Network		Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network		Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
Urgent Care	Plan pays plan dedu	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	oinsurance after met	Plan pays 100% coins plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	insurance after net
* Ambulance s	services used a	as non-emerger	icy transportat	tion (e.g., transpo	* Ambulance services used as non-emergency transportation (e.g., transportation from hospital back home) generally are not covered	oital back home	e) generally are	e not cover	ed	

7 of 17

ACLU of Connecticut

©Cigna 2014

^{7/1/2014} ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

Benefit	Initial	Initial Visit to Confirm Pregnancy	ΑĞ	l Subsequent Prenatal stnatal Visits and Phys Delivery Charges	All Subsequent Prenatal Visits, Office Visits in Addition to Postnatal Visits and Physician's (Performed by OB/GYN or Delivery Charges Specialist)	Office Vi Globa (Perform S	Office Visits in Addition to Global Maternity Fee (Performed by OB/GYN or Specialist)		Delivery - Facility (Inpatient Hospital, Birthing Center)	:acility tal, Birthing r)
	In-Network	eri (1994 - 19. datio Roome	Out-of- Network Ir	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	k Out-of- Network		In-Network	Out-of- Network
Maternity	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		e is	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plai coir ded met	e 80% ce is	ays rance tible is	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
		Place o	of Service	- You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive services	there you	receive se	rvices.		
ä	Banafit	Inpat	वि	and Other Hea	and Other Health Care Facilities	S		Outpatient Services	services	
5		-	n-Network		Out-of-Network		In-Network	¥	Out-of-Network	letwork
Hospice (pro	Hospice (provided as part of		Plan pays 100% coinsurance		Plan pays 80% coinsurance	4	Plan pays 100% coinsurance		Plan pays 80% coinsurance	coinsurance
Hospice Care Program)	Program)	after plan c	after plan deductible is met		after plan deductible is met		after plan deductible is met		after plan deductible is met	tible is met
Bereavement Counseli (Services provided as p Hospice Care Program)	Bereavement Counseling (Services provided as part of Hospice Care Program)		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	coinsurance ttible is met
		Place (of Service	- You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive services	vhere you	receive se	rvices.		
	Physician's Office	r's Office	Inpatien	Inpatient Facility	Outpatient Facility	t Facility	Inpatient P Serv	Inpatient Professional Services	Outpatient Ser	Outpatient Professional Services
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
Abortion	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%
(Elective and	8	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance
non-elective procedures)	arter plan deductible is met	arter plan deductible is met	arter plan deductible is met	atter plan deductible is met	alter plan deductible is met	alter plan deductible is met	aner pian deductible is met	alter plan deductible is met	deductible is	deductible is met

8 of 17

©Cigna 2014

acluct.org

Benefit In-Network In-Network In-Network Family Plan pays Planning - coinsurance Men's after plan Services after plan Includes surgical services, s net Family Plan pays Family Plan pays Services stervices, s Services 100%		In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan met met Plan pays 100%	k Out-of- Network Network Plan pays 80% after plan after plan reversals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	In-Network Construct Plan pays Plan Plan pays 80% after plan after plan met met Plan pays 80% Plan pays coin 100% after plan after plan after plan	Network Network Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met coinsurance after plan deductible is met	In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met 100%	Out-of- brk Out-of- Network Plan pays 80% ce coinsurance after plan met 1 Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan g0% 1 plan pays 80% met 1 net 1	In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays Plan pays	Out-of- Network Out-of- Network Plan pays 80% ce after plan is deductible is Met Plan pays 60% coinsurance 80% after plan Adductible is after plan Adductible is after plan
In-Neth Family Plan par Family 100% Planning - coinsur Men's after pla Planning - met Includes surgical servic Plan pa Pamily Plan pa Services 100% Services Services	work Out-or- Out-or- Network ys Plan pays ance coinsurance ance coinsurance ance coinsurance ance coinsurance ance coinsurance ance coinsurance plan after plan vys coinsurance vys coinsurance after plan agter plan vys coinsurance after plan agter plan vys coinsurance after plan agter plan vs coinsurance	In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan met met Plan pays 100%	Out-or- Network Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ays ays ays ays	Out-of- Network Plan pays 30% coinsurance after plan et Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	Out-of- Network Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	In-Network Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays Plan pays	Out-of- Network Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Family Family Planning - 100% Men's after pla Services adductit met Includes surgical servic Family - Plan pa Women's 100% Services 100%	ys Plan pays ance coinsurance an after plan ble is deductible is met ces, such as vasectt gg% ys coinsurance after plan deductible is met plan pays ys Plan pays	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan met mmy (excludes rev 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ays rance lan ays ays	Plan pays 30% coinsurance after plan deductible is met 20% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Planning - coinsura Men's after pla Services deductit Includes surgical servic Family Plan pa Women's 100% Services	ance coinsurance ble is deductible is met met ces, such as vasectt plan pays g0% vys coinsurance after plan deductible is met plan pays vys plan pays	coinsurance after plan deductible is met my (excludes revv 100%	coinsurance after plan deductible is met ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ays ays	coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	coinsurance after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Men's after pla Services deductit Aet met Includes surgical servic Family Plan pa Women's 100% Services	an after plan ble is deductible is met ces, such as vasectt plan pays g0% coinsurance after plan deductible is met plan pays ys Plan pays	after plan deductible is met my (excludes rev 100%	after plan deductible is met ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met		after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	after plan deductible is met Plan pays 100%	after plan deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Services deductit met Includes surgical servic Family Plan pa Women's 100% Services	ble is deductible is met ces, such as vasectt Plan pays 80% vys coinsurance after plan deductible is met plan pays vs Plan pays	 deductible is met my (excludes rev 100% 	deductible is met ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	and the second	deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	deductible is met Plan pays 100%	deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	deductible is met Plan pays 100%	deductible is met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
met Includes surgical servic Family Planning - Plan pa Women's 100% Services	met ces, such as vasecto Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met met met sordered or preso tys Plan pays	met omy (excludes rev Plan pays 100%	met ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met eversals).	ays	met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	met Plan pays 100%	I met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	met Plan pays 100%	met Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Includes surgical servic Family Planning - 100% Services	vs such as vasect Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met met met as ordered or presc ys Plan pays	omy (excludes rev Plan pays 100%	ersals) Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met eversals).	ays	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Family Planning - Plan pa Women's 100% Services	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met met zes, such as tubal lic as ordered or presc tys Plan pays		Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	ays	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Planning - Plan pa Women's 100% Services	ys coinsurance after plan deductible is met <u>met</u> <u>ses, such as tubal lic</u> <u>as ordered or presc</u> ys Plan pays		coinsurance after plan deductible is met eversals).	ays	coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	coinsurance after plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100%	coinsurance after plan deductible is met
Women's 100% Services	after plan deductible is met ces, such as tubal lig as ordered or presc tys Plan pays		after plan deductible is met eversals).		after plan deductible is met	100%	after plan deductible is met	100%	after plan deductible is met
Services	meducuole is met ces, such as tubal lig as ordered or presc iys Plan pays		deductible is met eversals).		aeductible is met		aeauctiple is met		deductible is met
	ces, such as tubal lig as ordered or presc iys Plan pays		eversals).						
	as ordered or presc iys Plan pays								
Contracentive devices as	lys Plan pays	ribed by a physicis	an						
		Plan pavs	Plan navs	Plan navs	Plan navs	Plan pays	Plan pays	Plan navs	Plan pays
100%	80%	100%	80%		80%	100%	80%	100%	80%
coinsurance	ance coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	ଞ	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance
			after plan		after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan
deductible is			deductible is	uctible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is
	(Inel sector and sector	Inter			lilet Hificial incomin	utiel otion in viter 4			Iller
Intertility covered services: lab and radiology	ces: lab and radiolog	<u>gy test, counseiing,</u>		surgical treatment, includes ar	TITICIAI INSEMIN	artificial insemination, in-vitro tertilization,	remitzation, GIF I		
	1900	Place of Service - You pay Innationt Hosnital Facility	- YOU Day	based on where you receive services.	/here you	receive s	/e Services. Innatient Professional Services	al Services	
Donofi	l ifaceurae Easility	1.	Lifesource		1 ifocon	l ifacouraa Eacilitu	Non-Lifesource	rce	
	Litesource Facility	Ity Facility In-Network		Out-of-Network		in-Network	Facility In-Network		Out-of-Network
	Cost and reimbursement varv	Cost reim		Varies based on		Cost and reimbursement vary	Cost and reimbursement varv		Vsaries based on
Organ Transplants	based on the facility			place of service with no transplant		based on the facility	based on the facility		place of service with no transplant
	In which it is performed	in which it is performed		maximums	in which it is performed	d IS	in wnich it is performed	maximums	sun
Travel Lifetime Maximum - Lifesource Facility: In-Network: \$10.000 maximum per Transplant per Lifetime	um - Lifesource Fac	ility: In-Network: \$	\$10,000 maximu	um per Transplar	nt per Lifetime				

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

9 of 17

©Cigna 2014

		Place c	Place of Service -	- You pay	 You pay based on where you receive services 	where you	receive se	rvices.		
	Physician'	Physician's Services -	Inpatient Hos	Inpatient Hospital Facility	Outpatient Facility	nt Facility	Inpatient Professional	rofessional	Outpatient F	Outpatient Professional
Benefit					120				Sel	Services
	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%
(coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance
uental care	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan	after plan
~~~	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is	deductible is
	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met
Limited to che	Limited to charges made for a continuous course of dental	a continuous cou		eatment startec	treatment started within six months of an injury to sound, natural teeth.	ths of an injury i	to sound, naturi	al teeth.		
		Place (	of Service	- You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive services	where you	receive se	rvices.		
	Physicia	Physician's Office	Inpatien	Inpatient Facility	Outpatier	Outpatient Facility	Inpatient P Serv	Inpatient Professional Services	Outpatient I Serv	Outpatient Professional Services
benetit	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
TMJ, Surgical and Non- Surgical	I Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered	Not covered
		Place (	of Service	- You pay	Place of Service - You pay based on where you		receive services.	irvices.		
	Physician' Offic	Physician's Services - Office Visit	Inpatient Hos	ospital Facility	Outpatie Serv	Outpatient Facility Services	Inpatient P Serv	Inpatient Professional Services	Outpatient   Sen	Outpatient Professional Services
Benefit	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network	In-Network	Out-of- Network
	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%	Plan pays 100%	Plan pays 80%
Bariatric	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance	coinsurance
Surgery	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is	after plan deductible is
	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met	met
Treatment of	Treatment of clinically severe obesity, as defined by the body mass index (BMI) parameters for National Heart, Lung and Blood Institute guidelines.	: obesity, as def	ined by the bod	ly mass index (I	3MI) parameter	s for National H	eart, Lung and	Blood Institute		Covered only at
approved centers. The following are	approved centers. The following are excluded:									,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
• medi	medical and surgical services to alter appearances or physical changes that are the result of any surgery performed for the management of obesity or clinically	services to alte	r appearances (	or physical chai	nges that are th	e result of any s	surgery perform	ed for the man	lagement of obe	sity or clinically
• weigh	weight loss programs or treatments, whether prescribed or recommended by a physician or under medical supervision	s or treatments,	whether prescri	ibed or recomm	ended by a phy	sician or under	medical supen	rision		

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

©Cigna 2014

10 of 17

Benefit         Inpatient         (includes individual, group therapy mental health)         Includes           Renefit         In-Network         Out-of-Network         In-Network         health	ental       (includes individual, group therapy mental health and intensive outpatient mental health)         ork       In-Network       Out-of-Network         ork       In-Network       Out-of-Network         ork       Plan pays 100%       Plan pays 80%         er       plan deductible is       met         is       plan deductible is       plan deductible is         met       coinsurance after       plan deductible is         ive       coinsurance after       plan deductible is         intet       met       met         intet       Outpatient Facility       outpatient substance after         orthan pays 100%       Plan pays 80%       er         includes individual and intensive       outpatient substance after         orthatient substance after       coinsurance after         is       plan deductible is         met       outpatient substance after         is       plan deductible is         met       coinsurance after         intensive       coinsurance after         is       plan deductible is         intet       plan deductible is
In-Ne Plan pays coinsuranc plan deduc met health services are Plan pays covered under meo	twork twork ce after co co ctible is cutpatient F des individual fipatient substa twork twork ctible is ctible is co co ctible is fipatient substa the co co ctible is fipatient substa
Plan pays coinsuranc plan deduc met Health services are Plan pays covered under mec	100% Pla trible is after co crible is pla Outpatient F Outpatient F indes individual tratient substa twork Pla 100% Pla total after co crible is pla
coinsuranc plan deduc met Health services are Plan pays covered under mec	c after co ctible is pla . Outpatient F Outpatient F ne thork pla 100% pla . co ctible is pla
plan deduc met Health services are Plan pays coinsurand met covered under med	ctible is pla . Outpatient F Outpatient F Ides individual tpatient substa twork pla 100% pla
met     met     met     met     met       • Unlimited maximum per Contract Year     • Mental Health services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum     met     met       • Mental Health services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum     Place of Service - You pay based on where you receiv       Benefit     Inpatient     Outpatient - Physician's Office (includes individual and intensive outpatient substance abuse)       Benefit     In-Network     Out-of-Network     Out-of-Network       Benefit     In-Network     Out-of-Network     Out-of-Network       Benefit     In-Network     Out-of-Network     Out-of-Network       Benefit     In-Network     In-Network     In-Network	Outpatient F     Outpatient S     Discrete F
<ul> <li>Unlimited maximum per Contract Year</li> <li>Mental Health services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum</li> <li>Mental Health services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum</li> <li>Benefit</li> <li>Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive outpatient - Physician's Office (includes individual and intensive outpatient substance abuse)</li> <li>Substance Abuse</li> <li>In-Network</li> <li>Network</li> <li>Plan pays 100%</li> <li>Plan pays 80%</li> <li>Plan pays 100%</li> <li>Plan pays 100%</li> <li>Plan pays 80%</li> <li>Plan pays 100%</li> </ul>	Cutpatient F Outpatient F des individual tpatient substa twork 100% Pia 100% Pia Pia trible is trible is me
Mental Health services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum     Place of Service - You pay based on where you receive     Outpatient - Physician's Office     Inpatient     Benefit     In-Network     In-Network     In-Network     In-Network     In-Network     Plan pays 100%     Plan pays 100%     Plan pays 80%     Plan pays 100%     Plan pays 80%     plan deductible is     met     met     met     met	Outpatient F. Outpatient F. des individual tpatient substa twork Pil 100% Pil costible is pia
Place of Service - You pay based on where you receiv       Benefit       Benefit       Benefit     Inpatient     Outpatient - Physician's Office       Benefit     In-Network     Outpatient - Physician's Office       In-Network     In-Network     Outpatient substance abuse)       Substance Abuse     Plan pays 80%     Plan pays 100%     Plan pays 80%       Substance Abuse     plan deductible is     plan deductible is     plan deductible is       Mote: Detox is covered under medical     met     met     met	Outpatient F. Outpatient F. des individual tpatient substa twork Pil 100% Pil co after co ctible is pla
Benefit     Inpatient     Outpatient - Physician's Office       Benefit     In-Network     Includes individual and intensive       In-Network     Out-of-Network     In-Network       In-Network     Out-of-Network     In-Network       Substance Abuse     Plan pays 100%     Plan pays 80%       Substance Abuse     plan deductible is     plan deductible is       Mofe: Detox is covered under medical     met     met	Outpatient F des individual tpatient substa twork Pi 100% Pi co co co cible is pk
Inpatient(includes individual outpatient substaIncludes individual(includes individual outpatient substaIncludes individualIncludes individual outpatient substaIncludes individualIncludes individual outpatient substaIncludes individual metIncludes individual outpatient substaIncludes individual metIncludes individual outpatient substa	(includes individual outpatient substa voutpatient substa poutpatient substa Pilan pays 100%       Plan pays 100%       coinsurance after coinsurance after plan deductible is plan deductible is met
outpatient substa       ork     Out-of-Network     In-Network       %     Plan pays 80%     Plan pays 100%       fter     coinsurance after     coinsurance after       e is     plan deductible is     plan deductible is       met     met	outpatient substa           rk         In-Network           Plan pays 100%         Pli           coinsurance after         co           plan deductible is         pli
rrk         Out-of-Network         In-Network         Plan pays         Plan         P	k         In-Network         Pian           Plan pays 100%         Pian         Pian           coinsurance after         co         pian           plan deductible is         pian         met
% Plan pays 80% Plan pays 100% fter coinsurance after coinsurance after e is plan deductible is met	Plan pays 100% coinsurance after plan deductible is met
fter coinsurance after coinsurance after e is plan deductible is plan deductible is met met	coinsurance after plan deductible is met
e is plan deductible is plan deductible is met	plan deductible is met
met met	
iote: Detox is covered under medical	
<ul> <li>Substance Abuse services are paid at 100% after you reach your out-of-pocket maximum</li> </ul>	
Mental Health and Substance Abuse services	
MH/SA Service Specific Administration	
Partial Hospitalization, Residential Treatment and Intensive Outpatient Programs:	
<ul> <li>Partial Hospitalization: The coinsurance level for Partial Hospitalization services is the same as the coinsurance level for inpatient MH/SA services.</li> </ul>	surance level for inpatient MH/SA services.
<ul> <li>Standard for Residential Treatment: Subject to the plan's inpatient MH/SA benefit. Coverage only if approved through Cigna Behavioral Health Case</li> </ul>	roved through Cigna Behavioral Health Case
Management.	
<ul> <li>Intensive Outpatient Program (IOP): Benefit is the same as outpatient visits. Coverage only if approved through Cigna Behavioral Health Case Management.</li> </ul>	<u>through Cigna Behavioral Health Case Managem</u>

acluct.org

Ogna Behavioural Alvanage       Outgetient uitration review and case management.         • Unpetient uitration review and case management.       • Unpetient uitration review and case management.         • Entile hospitation       • Entile hospitation         • Entile hospitation       • Entitie Hospitation         • Entile hospitation       • Entitie Hospitation         • Entitie Hospitation       • Entitie Hospitation
sse management case management case management s Stress Managerr gement ug, patient pays the the brand and ge gs - includes infert the brand and ge the brand and brand and ge the brand and ge t
case managemen ind and Body Prog gement gement ug, patient pays the the brand and ge the brand and ge by - includes infert the specific product the specific product the insulin needles ded nical edits and prion and the and prion on edits are always by early very very ured on specialty used
ind and Body Prog Stress Managerr gement ig, patient pays the the brand and ge by a includes infert th specific product th specific product ts, insulin needles ded rior Authorizatio nical edits and pri on edits are alwayr basic package - 1 very very uried on specialty used <u>list</u>
ind and Body Prog Stress Managerr gement acy ig, patient pays the the brand and ge by a concerting the brand and ge its, insulin needles ded rior Authorizatio nical edits and pri on edits are always basic package - 1 uried on specialty very very
ind and Body Prog ind and Body Prog gement acy acy big, patient pays the the brand and ger big very he specific product the specific product the specific product the specific product the product rior Authorizatio need rior Authorizatio need the and priv and priv the specialty very very uried on specialty user
: Stress Managerr gement acy gerent acy big, patient pays the the brand and ger big - includes infert the specific product the specific product tes, insulin needles ded rior Authorizatio nical edits and pri on edits are always basic package - I uried on specialty very very
gement acy dg, patient pays the the brand and ger gs - includes infert th specific product the specific product ts, insulin needles ded rior Authorizatio nical edits and pri nical edits are always basic package - 1 uried on specialty very very
gement acy g, patient pays the the brand and ger gs - includes infert th specific product ts, insulin needles ded rior Authorizatio nedits are always basic package - I basic package - I uried on specialty very very
acy ig, patient pays the the brand and ger is - includes infert th specific product th specific product the secoldes ded rior Authorizatio nical edits and pri- prior Authorizatio rior Authorizatio rior Authorizatio ded rior Authorizatio rior Authorizatio rio
Ig, patient pays the the brand and get gs - includes infert th specific product ths, insulin needles ted rior Authorizatio nical edits and prion nical edits are always be edits are always ne edits are always the package - 1 uired on specialty very
Ig, patient pays the the brand and gei th specific product ts, insulin needles ded <b>rior Authorizatio</b> inical edits and pri on edits are alway ben edits are alway the dits are alway recy very very very
plus the cost difference between the brand and generic drugs up       Preferred Brand: You pay 255       Yeu an         or the cost of the brand drug.       Self Administence between the brand and grug.       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 20%         Preferred Drand: You pay stop       Oral contraceptives included       Home delivery - 90 day supply         Includes oral contraceptives included       Home delivery - 90 day supply       Home Delivery         Includes oral contraceptives included       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         nisulin pens and cartridges included       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         Additional clinical management and Prior Authorization       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         Additional clinical management and Prior Authorization       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         Additional clinical management and Prior Authorization       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         itst of prescription medications.       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         itst of prescription medications.       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         itst of prescription medications.       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         itst of prescription medications.       Non-Preferred Brand: You pay 550       Not covered         itst of prescription
to the cost of the brand drug. Self Administered injectable drugs - includes infertility drugs Contraceptives included Includes contraceptives included Includes contaceptives included Includes contraceptives included Includes contrace contractions exclusion requirements. Include Program Include Prescription Drug List Incorrection Program Include Prescription Drug List
<ul> <li>Self Administered injectable drugs - includes infertility drugs</li> <li>Self Administered injectable drugs - includes infertility drugs</li> <li>Oral contraceptives included</li> <li>Oral contraceptives included</li> <li>Includes oral contraceptives insulin needles &amp; syringes, insulin pens and cartridges included</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 insulin pens and cartridges included</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Not covered</li> <li>Not covered</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non additional other Authorization</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non additional other Authorization</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non preferred Brand: You pay \$50 Not covered</li> <li>Non prescription medications.</li> <li>Non preferred Brand: You</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Oral contraceptives included</li> <li>Oral contraceptives included</li> <li>Includes oral contraceptives with specific products covered 100% Includes on contraceptives with specific products covered 100% Included</li> <li>Your plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization</li> <li>Vour plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization</li> <li>Not covered</li> <li>Not covered</li> <li>Not plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization</li> <li>Not covered</li> <li>Not covered</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Includes oral contraceptives - with specific products covered 100% Generic: You pay \$50 insulin, glucose test strips, lancets, insulin needles &amp; syringes, insulin pens and cartradges included</li> <li>Insulin pens and cartradges included</li> <li>You pay \$50 Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50 insulin pens and cartradges included</li> <li>You fail an exclusion edits and prior authorization requirements.</li> <li>Refil-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included.</li> <li>Additional clinical management - Basic package - provides a limited set of clinical edits such as prior authorization, age edits and quantity limits for a speciality Pharmacy Management.</li> <li>Clinical Programs</li> <li>Theracare® Program</li> <li>Theracare® Program</li> <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> <li>Clineal Programs</li> <li>Clineal Programs</li> <li>Clineal Programs</li> <li>Clineal Programs</li> <li>Clineal Programs</li> <li>Clineal Program <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> <li>Additional Information</li> <li>Clineal Program</li> <li>Clineal Program</li> <li>Clineal Program</li> <li>Clineal Program</li> <li>Clineal Program</li> </li></ul>
<ul> <li>Insulin, glucose test strips, lancets, insulin needles &amp; syringes, insulin pens and cartridges included</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: You pay \$50</li> <li>Non-Preferred Brand: Prescription Drug List</li> </ul>
insulin pens and cartridges included Non-Preferred Brand: You pay SSO harmacy Clinical Management and Prior Authorization • Your plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization requirements. • Your plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization requirements. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refile-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included. • Refile-too-soon and plan exclusion is required on specialty medications but quantity limits may apply. • Theracare® Program • Medication Access Option • Retail and/or Home Delivery • Clinical Information • Clinical Prescription Drug List • Cligna Standard Prescription Drug List
<ul> <li>harmacy Clinical Management and Prior Authorization</li> <li>Your plan is subject to certain clinical edits and prior authorization requirements.</li> <li>Refill-too-soon and plan exclusion edits are always included.</li> <li>Additional clinical management - Basic package - provides a limited set of clinical edits such as prior authorization, age edits and quantity limits for a specilist of prescription medications.</li> <li>Prior authorization is required on specialty medications but quantity limits may apply.</li> <li>Mediation Access @ Program</li> <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> <li>Clinical Information</li> <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> <li>Clinical Information</li> <li>Clinical Standard Prescription Drug List</li> </ul>
n clinical edits and pri usion edits are always ent - Basic package - I s. required on specialty Delivery Drug List
usion edits are always ent - Basic package - I is. r r Delivery Drug List
ent - Basic package - I is. required on specialty Delivery Drug List
is. required on specialty Delivery Drug List
required on specialty Delivery Drug List
n is required on specialty ram ne Delivery on Drug List
n is required on specialty ram De Delivery on Drug List
<ul> <li>Theracare® Program</li> <li>Medication Access Option         <ul> <li>Medication Access Option</li> <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> </ul> </li> <li>Additional Information         <ul> <li>rescription Drug List</li> <li>Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Medication Access Option         <ul> <li>Medication Access Option</li> <li>Retail and/or Home Delivery</li> </ul> </li> <li>Additional Information         <ul> <li>Rescription Drug List</li> <li>Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
o Retail and/or Home Delivery Additional Information rescription Drug List     Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List
Additional Information rescription Drug List: • Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List
rescription Drug List: <ul> <li>Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List</li> </ul>
Cigna Standard Prescription Drug List

Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

©Cigna 2014

Health and Wellness Programs	ness Programs
Your Health First - 200	Holistic health support for the following chronic health conditions:
Individuals with one or more of the chronic conditions, identified on the right, may	Heart Disease
be eligible to receive the following type of support:	<ul> <li>Coronary Artery Disease</li> </ul>
	Angina
<ul> <li>Condition Management</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Congestive Heart Failure</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Medication adherence</li> </ul>	Acute Myocardial Infarction
<ul> <li>Risk factor management</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Peripheral Arterial Disease</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Lifestyle issues</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Asthma</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Health &amp; Wellness issues</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (Emphysema and Chronic</li> </ul>
Pre/post-admission	Bronchitis)
<ul> <li>Treatment decision support</li> </ul>	Diabetes Type 1
Gaps in care	Diabetes Type 2
	<ul> <li>Metabolic Syndrome/Weight Complications</li> </ul>
	Osteoarthritis
	Low Back Pain
	<ul> <li>Anxiety</li> </ul>
	Bipolar Disorder
	Depression
Health Advisor - A	
Support for healthy and at-risk individuals to help them stay healthy	
Health Assessments	
<ul> <li>Health and Wellness Coaching</li> </ul>	lucinaea .
<ul> <li>Cigna Well Informed Program</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Preference Sensitive Care</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Educate and Refer</li> </ul>	
eVisits	Included
	e to a patient who is at risk of developing medical complexities or for whom a
health incident has precipitated a need for rehabilitation or additional heaith care su care while maximizing the patient's quality of life.	additional health care support. The program strives to attain a balance between quality and cost enective

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

13 of 17

©Cigna 2014

	1
	(
	1
2.2	1
	2
	-
	5
	1
	1
	٦
	1
	1
22 A	-
	1
	1
1.5	7
	4
612 S	1
NS	
	1
332	1
125	1
822	1
	7
100	÷
11120	ŝ
	1
	1
12.56	÷
	2
10	1
S. 114	
Second Second	
2	
efinitions	
31.5	
1993. 1993	
Ser.	

Coinsurance - After you've reached your deductible, you and your plan share some of your medical costs. The portion of covered expenses you are responsible for is called coinsuranc

Copay - A flat fee you pay for certain covered services such as doctor's visits or prescriptions.

Deductible - A flat dollar amount you must pay out of your own pocket before your plan begins to pay for covered services.

Out-of-Pocket Maximum - Specific limits for the total amount you will pay out of your own pocket before your plan coinsurance percentage no longer applies. Once you meet these maximums, your plan then pays 100 percent of the "maximum reimbursable charges" or negotiated fees for covered services.

Prescription Drug List - The list of prescription brand and generic drugs covered by your pharmacy plan.

Transition of Care - Provides in-network health coverage to new customers when the customer's doctor is not part of the Cigna network and there are approved clinical reasons why the customer should continue to see the same doctor.

## Dollars & Sense

DOLLARS & SENSE: Easy ways to decrease your out-of-pocket health care expenses.

### In-network care

Using doctors, hospitals and facilities that participate in the Cigna network can save you money. In addition, choosing Cigna Care designated specialists - doctors in 19 specialties who have been identified for their superior performance in quality and cost efficiency - may save you even more. You can verify that a doctor or facility is in Cigna's network and learn more about the Cigna Care designation by checking the directory on myCigna.com or Cigna.com, or by calling the customer service number on the back of your Cigna ID card. Cigna is open 24/7.

Urgent care

# (Average urgent care center cost \$131 / Average hospital ER cost \$1,523)

ዚ Many people use the emergency room (ER) for conditions that are not serious or life-threatening. Using an urgent care center or your doctor's office instead of an can save you hundreds of dollars and provides the same quality of care as an ER. If you need care and are not sure if you need to go to the ER, speak with your doctor or call Cigna's 24-hour nurse line at the number on the back your Cigna ID card to determine the most appropriate location for urgent care.

Convenience care or retail clinics (Average convenience care clinic cost \$61 / Average hospital ER cost \$1,523)

Convenience care clinics provide quick and easy access to high quality treatment for common medical conditions when your doctor is not available. These clinics are located in department stores, grocery stores and pharmacies. To locate convenience care clinics, you can check the Directory on myCigna.com or Cigna.com, or call the customer service number on the back of your Cigna ID card. Cigna is open 24/7.

Laboratory and pathology tests

# (Average LabCorp/Quest cost \$9 / Average other lab cost \$24 / Average outpatient hospital lab cost \$48)

Two of the nation's largest and most prominent laboratories, Quest Diagnostics, Inc. (Quest) and Laboratory Corporation of America (LabCorp), participate in the Cigna network. Services at these labs can cost 70-75% less and offer the same or better quality than hospital laboratories. When you need lab services, discuss these options with your doctor. To find the nearest Quest and LabOrp locations, check the directory on myCigna.com or Cigna.com.

(Average independent radiology facility cost \$591 / Average outpatient hospital cost \$1,198) Radiology services (MRI or CT scan)

that provide radiology services, using independent radiology centers will save you money, without any difference in quality. Discuss location options with your doctor. If you need to have an MRI or CT scan, you can save hundreds of dollars by using an independent radiology center. While Cigna contracts with all types of facilities For help locating the most cost effective facility in which to have an MRI or CT scan, you can use the cost comparison tools on myCigna.com or call the customer

service number on the back of your Cigna ID card. Colonoscopy, endoscopy or arthroscopy

(Average freestanding surgery center cost \$1,438 / Average outpatient hospital cost \$2,821)

When a doctor recommends a colonoscopy, GI endoscopy or arthroscopy, make sure you know your options. Using a freestanding outpatient surgery center for

7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT

Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

acluct.org

Dollars & Sense
these procedures instead of a hospital can often save hundreds of dollars, while maintaining the same high quality as a hospital. Talk with your doctor about options. For help locating the most appropriate facility, you can use our cost comparison tools on myCigna.com or call the customer service number on the back of your Cigna
ID card. Cigna Home Delivery Pharmacy You can save money and enjoy convenient home delivery by using Cigna Home Delivery Pharmacy for your prescription medications. You can get up to a 90-day
suppy or your memoration. Exclusions
ered (not all-inclusive):
Your plan provides for most medically necessary services. The complete list of exclusions is provided in your Certificate or Summary Plan Description. To the extent there may be differences, the terms of the Certificate or Summary Plan Description control. Examples of things your plan does not cover, unless required by law or
covered under the pharmacy benefit, include (put arent limited to).
<ul> <li>care for health conditions that are required by state or local law to be treated in a public facility.</li> <li>care required by state or federal law to be supplied by a public school system or school district.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>care for military service disabilities treatable through governmental services if you are legally entitled to such treatment and facilities are reasonably available.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>treatment of an Injury or Sickness which is due to war, declared, or undeclared, riot or insurrection.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>charges which you are not obligated to pay or for which you are not billed or for which you would not have been billed except that they were covered under this plan</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>assistance in the activities of daily living, including but not limited to eating, bathing, dressing or other Custodial Services or self-care activities, homemaker</li> </ul>
services and services primarily for rest, domiciliary
<ul> <li>for or in connection with experimental, investigational or unproven services.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Any services and supplies for or in connection with experimental, investigational or unproven services. Experimental, investigational and unproven services</li> </ul>
do not include routine patient care costs related to qualified clinical ulais as described in your plan document. Evvarimental investinational and innoroven services are medical, surgical, diagnostic, osychiatric, substance abuse or other health care technologies,
supplies, treatments, procedures, drug therapies or devices that are determined by the Healthplan Medical Director to be: not demonstrated, through existing
peer-reviewed, evidence-based scientific literature to be safe and effective for treating or diagnosing the condition or illness for which its use is proposed; or
not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) of other appropriate regulatory agency to be lawiully fillar becaute used of the second s
<ul> <li>cosmetic surgery and therapies. Cosmetic surgery or therapy is defined as surgery or therapy performed to improve or alter appearance or self-esteem or to</li> </ul>
treat psychological symptomatology or psychosocial complaints related to one's appearance.
<ul> <li>The following services are excluded from coverage regardless of clinical indications: Macromastia or Gynecomastia Surgical treatment or varicose</li> </ul>
veins; Abdominoplasity, Faminoulectority, Kumoplasity, Dispiratoplasity, Neuroplasity, Neurova of Swittager, Sourcest, Sou
musculoskeletal and orthopedic conditions.
<ul> <li>surgical or nonsurgical treatment of TMJ disorders.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>dental treatment of the teeth, gums or structures directly supporting the teeth, including dental A-rays, examinations, repairs, or incurrence, periodomices, and the second for or in connection with an accidental</li> </ul>
casts, splints and services for dental malocclusion, for any condition. Unarges made for services of supplies provided for the and services of the services of
Injury to source native the overed provided a continued of a contract of
<ul> <li>medical and surgical services, initial and repeat, intended for the treatment or control of obesity, except for treatment of clinically severe (morbid) obesity as</li> </ul>
100/1/1/

ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

©Cigna 2014

shown in Covered Expenses, including: medical and surgical services to alter appearance or physical changes that are the result of any surgery performed for the management of obesity or clinically severe (morbid) obesity; and weight loss programs or treatments, whether prescribed or recommended by a Physician or under medical supervisior

- unless otherwise covered in this plan, for reports, evaluations, physical examinations, or hospitalization not required for health reasons including, but not limited to, employment, insurance or government licenses, and court-ordered, forensic or custodial evaluations.
  - court-ordered treatment or hospitalization, unless such treatment is prescribed by a Physician and listed as covered in this plan.
- transsexual surgery including medical or psychological counseling and hormonal therapy in preparation for, or subsequent to, any such surgery. ۰
- any medications, drugs, services or supplies for the treatment of male or female sexual dysfunction such as, but not limited to, treatment of erectile a
  - dysfunction (including penile implants), anorgasmy, and premature ejaculation.
- medical and Hospital care and costs for the infant child of a Dependent, unless this infant child is otherwise eligible under this plan.
- nonmedical counseling or ancillary services, including but not limited to Custodial Services, education, training, vocational rehabilitation, behavioral training, safety, and services, training, educational therapy or other nonmedical ancillary services for learning disabilities, developmental delays, autism or mental biofeedback, neurofeedback, hypnosis, sleep therapy, employment counseling, back school, return to work services, work hardening programs, driving retardation.
- therapy or treatment intended primarily to improve or maintain general physical condition or for the purpose of enhancing job, school, athletic or recreational performance, including but not limited to routine, long term, or maintenance care which is provided after the resolution of the acute medical problem and when significant therapeutic improvement is not expected.
  - disposable medical supplies, skin preparations and test strips, except as specified in the "Home Health Services" or "Breast Reconstruction and Breast consumable medical supplies other than ostomy supplies and urinary catheters. Excluded supplies include, but are not limited to bandages and Prostheses" sections of this plan.
    - private Hospital rooms and/or private duty nursing except as provided under the Home Health Services provision.
- personal or comfort items such as personal care kits provided on admission to a Hospital, television, telephone, newborn infant photographs, complimentary meals, birth announcements, and other articles which are not for the specific treatment of an Injury or Sickness.
  - artificial aids including, but not limited to, corrective orthopedic shoes, arch supports, elastic stockings, garter belts, corsets, dentures and wigs.
- hearing aids, including but not limited to semi-implantable hearing devices, audiant bone conductors and Bone Anchored Hearing Aids (BAHAs). A hearing aid is any device that amplifies sound.
  - aids or devices that assist with nonverbal communications, including but not limited to communication boards, prerecorded speech devices, laptop computers, desktop computers, Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs), Braille typewriters, visual alert systems for the deaf and memory books.
    - eyeglass lenses and frames and contact lenses (except for the first pair of contact lenses for treatment of keratoconus or post cataract surgery).
      - routine refractions, eye exercises and surgical treatment for the correction of a refractive error, including radial keratotomy.
        - treatment by acupuncture.
- all non-injectable prescription drugs, injectable prescription drugs that do not require Physician supervision and are typically considered self-administered drugs, nonprescription drugs, and investigational and experimental drugs, except as provided in this plan.
- routine foot care, including the paring and removing of corns and calluses or trimming of nails. However, services associated with foot care for diabetes and peripheral vascular disease are covered when Medically Necessary.
  - membership costs or fees associated with health clubs, weight loss programs and smoking cessation programs.
- genetic screening or pre-implantations genetic screening. General population-based genetic screening is a testing method performed in the absence of any symptoms or any significant, proven risk factors for genetically linked inheritable disease.
  - dental implants for any condition.
- fees associated with the collection or donation of blood or blood products, except for autologous donation in anticipation of scheduled services where in the
  - 7/1/2014 ASO / EHB State: CT

Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330

EXCIUSIONS utilization review Physician's opinion the likelihood of excess blood loss is such that transfusion is an expected adjunct to surgery.
<ul> <li>blood administration for the purpose of general improvement in physical condition.</li> <li>cost of biologicals that are immunizations or medications for the purpose of travel, or to protect against occupational hazards and risks.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>cosmetics, dietary supplements and health and beauty aids.</li> <li>all intritional sumplements and formulae excent for infant formula needed for the treatment of inhom errors of metabolism.</li> </ul>
medical treatment for a person age of 50 or offer, who is covered under this plan as a refiree, or their Dependent, when payment is denied by the Medicare
<ul> <li>medical treatment when payment is denied by a Primary Plan because treatment was received from a nonparticipating provider.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>for or in connection with an Injury or Sickness arising out of, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit.</li> <li>telephone, e-mail, and Internet consultations or other services which under normal circumstances are expected to be provided through face-to-face clinical</li> </ul>
encounters, unless provided via an approved internet based internetiaty.
These are only the highlights This summary outlines the highlights of your plan. For a complete list of both covered and not covered services, including benefits required by your state, see your employer's insurance certificate or summary plan description – the official plan documents. If there are any differences between this summary and the plan documents, the information in the plan documents takes precedence. This summary provides additional information not provided in the Summary of Benefits and Coverage document required by the Federal Government.
"Cigna," the "Tree of Life" logo, "Cigna Care Network," "Cigna Behavioral Health," "Cigna Choice Fund," "Cigna Well Aware for Better Health" and "Your Health First" are registered service marks, and "Cigna Healthcare," "Cigna Behavioral Health," "Cigna Ume Delivery Pharmacy," "Cigna Well Aware for Better Health" and "Your Health First" are registered service marks, of Cigna Intellectual Property, Inc., licensed for use by Cigna Corporation and its operating subsidiaries. All products and services are provided by or through such operating subsidiaries and not by Cigna Behavioral Health, Inc., Tel-Drug, Inc., Tel-Drug of Pennsylvania, L.L.C. and HMO or service (CGLIC), Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company (CHLIC), Cigna Behavioral Health, Inc., Tel-Drug, Inc., Tel-Drug of Pennsylvania, L.L.C. and HMO or service company subsidiaries of Cigna Health Corporation and Cigna Dental Health, Inc. In Arizona, HMO plans are offered by Cigna Health Carona, Inc. In Connecticut, HMO plans are offered by Cigna HealthCare of Connecticut, Inc. In North Carolina, HMO plans are offered by Cigna HealthCare of North Carolina, Inc. In California, HMO and Network plans are offered by Cigna HealthCare of Conficuna, Inc. All other medical plans in these states are insured or administered by CGLIC or CHLIC. "Cigna Home Delivery Pharmacy" refers to Tel-Drug, Inc. and Tel-Drug of Pennsylvania, L.L.C.
7/1/2014

©Cigna 2014

17 of 17

ASO / EHB State: CT Choice Fund Health Savings Account (HSA) Open Access Plus - - Town of Enfield Police CCF HSA OAP Coinsurance Plan - 147330